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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Affle (India) Private Limited
Report on the Ind AS financial statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Affle (India) Private Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the statement
of Other Comprehensive Income, Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (*the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We have taken
into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be
included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Ind
AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Ind AS financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2018, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the
year ended on that date.
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Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 37 to the financial statements, which indicate that business combination under common
control has been accounted for using purchase method in accordance with previous GAAP as prescribed under
court scheme instead of using pooling interest method as prescribed under Ind AS 103 Business Combinations as
the approved court scheme will prevail over applicable accounting standard.

Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I

(@

(®)

(©)

(@

(e)

U

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure 1 a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,

the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 3 1,2018, and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018, from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report dated June 16, 2018 in “Annexure 2” to this report;
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(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership Number: 94941
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: June 16,2018
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our
report of even date

Re: Affle (India) Private Limited

O @

(b)

(c)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

%)

(vi)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immovable
properties, included in fixed assets of the Company and accordingly, the requirements under paragraph
3(1) (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the

provisions of paragraph 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence
not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no
loans, investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of
paragraph 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the

maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services
of the Company

(vii) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, sales-tax, customs duty, excise duty,

cess have been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there have been significant
delays in few cases of service tax and ESI

(b) According to the information and explanations given by the management, no undisputed amounts

payable in respect of income-tax, service tax, provident fund and other material statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, service tax.

(viii)

(ix)

excise duty, value added tax and cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or
government or dues to debenture holders.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has utilized the money raised by way of term loan for the purposes for which it was raised.
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(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we
report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud / material fraud on the Company by the officers and
employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company and hence reporting
under paragraph 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of paragraph 3(xii) of the
order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explarations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have
been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.
The provisions of sec 177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly reporting under clause
3(xiii) insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under
clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and, not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192
of Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Yogesh Midha
Partner

Membership Number: 94941
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: June 16, 2018
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AFFLE (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Affle (India) Private Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the

accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note) and the
Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
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statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at March 3 1, 2018 based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
[CAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

¥

per Yogesh Midha

Partner

Membership Number: 94941
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: June 16,2018




Affle {indiaj Private Limited

{Amouni in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Balance Sheet as at March 31,2018

Asat Asat As at
Particutars Notes March 31,2018 March 31,2017 April 01,2016
ASSETS
L Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 3.67 3.63 548
(b) Capital work-in-progress 1 126
(¢) Goodwill 5924 5924 3624
(d) Other intangible assets 4 83.18 80 14 3306
(e) Intangible assets under development 4 306 3575
(f) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 5 026 020 -
(ii) Loans 6 5.83 631 ~28
(g) Deferred tax asset (net) 8 494 1896 2074
(h) Non curient tax asset (net) 9 - 316
(i) Other non-current assets 10 0.05 032 0.86
Total Non-current assets 162.17 171.86 169.83
II. Current assets
(a) Financial Assets
(1) Trade receivables 11 158.23 13530 16299
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 12 136 71 5789 78 69
(in) Otaer bank balarce other than (1) above 12 820 29 58
(1v) Loans 6 162 039 534
(v} Other financial assets 7 7729 3893 67 88
1b) Current tax asset (net) 9 2435 2848 2553
(c) Other current assets 10 1174 24 46 3005
Total Current assets 418.14 315.03 370.48
Total Assets 58031 486.89 54031
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Eamty snare capital 13 242 88 242 82 2472 88
(b} Other couty 13 58 77 {3257 ]
301.65 210,31 19'7.\‘)3-
LIABILITIES
1. Non-current habilities
(a) Financial Liabilities |
(1) Borrowings 14 - 526 40 40
(b) Provisions 15 1142 912 298
‘ Total Non-current liabilities 1142 14.38 5038
IL Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings 14 2834
(ii) Trade payables 16 22024 160.08 229 84
(111) Other financial liabihties 17 24 89 59 66 3827
(b} Provisions 15 107 147 518
(¢) Other ciutent liabilities 18 21 04 12.65 1900
Total Current liabilities 267.24 262.20 292.30
Fotal Equity and Liabilities _ 580,31 486.89 540.31
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of ¢ven date

For S.R. BATLIBOI1 & ASSOCIATES LLP
ICAT Firm's Registration No  101049W/E300004

Chartered Accountants

¢+ Yogesh Midha
Partner
Membership No = 94941
Place Gurugram
Date June 16, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Affle (India) Private Limited

«~ CIN No. U65990MH1994PTC080451

[DIN 01363666]
Place: Gurugram
Date June 16, 201K

Kapil Mohan Bhutatf
Director and Chief F
[DIN 00554760]
Place Gurugram
Date June 16,2018

ng Director & Chief Executive Officer

—
Anuj Kumar
Director

[DIN: 01400273}
Place: Gurugram
Date: June 16, 2018

Company Secretary

Membership No 29443

Place Gurugram
Date June ©, 2018



Affle (India) Private Limited
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2018

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Notes March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
I REVENUE
Revenue from operations 19 837.56 656.29
Other income 20 1122 15.79
Total revenue (I) 848.78 672.08
I EXPENSES
Inventory and data costs 42427 323.78
Employee benefits expense 21 159.52 176.23
Finance costs 22 10.78 15.86
Depreciation and amortization expense 23 32.13 23.07 4
Other expenses 24 86.12 121.06 |
Total expenses (IT) 712.82 660.00
IOI  Profit before tax (I-IT) 135.96 12.08
IV Tax expense: 8
(1) Current tax 46.20 1.82
(2) Deferred tax (credit)/ charge (includes adjustment of MAT credit
entitlement amounting to INR Nil (March 31, 2017: INR 1.82 1.45 4.14
million))
V  Profit for the year (III-IV) 88.31 6.12
VI Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of profit and
loss
Re-measurement gains /(losses) on defined benefit plans 25 012) 4,53
Income tax effect 8 0.04 (1.40)
Other Comprehensive Income net of tax (0.08) 3.13
|
VII Total Comprehensive Income for the year (V + VI) $8.23 9,25 l
VIII Earnings per equity share:
(1) Basic 26 364 0.25
(2) Diluted 3.64 0.25 |
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICAI Firm's Registration No.: 101049W/E300004 Affle (India) Private Limited
Chartered Accountants CIN No. U65990MH1994PTC080451
P
=
A .
per Yogesh Midha Anuj Anuj Kumar
Partoer Managi Director

Membership No : 94941
Place: Gurugram
Date: June 16, 2018

[DIN: 01363666]
Place: Gurugram
Date: June 16, 2018

Kapil Mohan Bhu
Director and Chief
[DIN. 00554760]
Place: Gurugram
Date: June 16, 2018

inanciy

[DIN 01400273
Place Gurugram
Date: June 16, 2018

: Akanksha Gupta

ompany Secretary
embership No. 29443
Place: Gurugram

Date: June 16,2018



Affle (India) Private Limited
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended March 31,2018

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
A Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit Before Tax 135.96 12.08
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortization 32.13 23.07
Allowance for impairment of trade receivables and unbilled revenue 11.22 11.21
Liabilities no longer required written back - (4.08)
Employee stock option compensation cost 3.11 343
Loss/ (Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

(Gain) D property, p quip g 0.06 (0.05)
(net)
Interest income (2.10) (3.90)
Interest expense 10.24 14.85
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/ loss (0.30) (1.13)
Advances given written off 0.04 2.10
Operating profit before working capital changes 190.36 57.58
Change in working capital:
Decrease/ (increase) in trade receivables (3221) 14.60
Decrease/ (increase) in financial assets (40.84) 35.33
Decrease in other assets 12.95 4.03
Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables 60.47 (67.85)
Increase in other financial liabilities 2.59 22.30
Increase/ (decrease) in other liabilities 8.38 (2.27)
Increase/ (decrease) in provisions 1.78 (0.05)
Cash generated from operations 203.48 63.67
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (29.46) (5.37)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 174.02 58.30

B Cash Flow from Investing Activities:

Purchase of property, plant & equipment, intangible assets including Capital (37.25) (32.30)
work in progress
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 0.04 1.53
Purchase of non-current investments (0.06) (0.20)
Investments in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three - (36.61)
months)
Redemption in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than three 2138 703
months)
Interest received 1.89 3.54
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (14.00) (57.01)




Affle (India) Private Limited
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended March 31,2018

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

C Cash flow from financing activities:
Interest paid (10.03) (13.60)
Proceeds from borrowings - 28.34
Repayment of borrowings (71.17) (36.83)
Net cash used from financing activities (C) (81.20) (22.09)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 78.82 (20.80)
(A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of year 57.89 78.69
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of year 136.71 57.89
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks:

In current account 116.36 57.66
Deposits with original maturity for less than three months 20.00 -
Cash on hand 0.35 623
Total cash and cash equivalents 136.71 57.89

The reconciliation between the opening and the closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities is as
follows:

Particulars March 31, 2017 Cash flows Fair value changes March 31, 2018
Long-term borrowings 42.09 (42.83) 0.74 -
Short-term borrowings 28.34 (28.34) - -

Total liabilities from

. Lo 70.42 (71.16) 0.74 S
financing activities

Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICAI Firm's Registration No.: 101049W/E300004 Affle (India) Private Limited
Chartered Accountants CIN No. U65990MH1994PTC080451—

. ,
- o 1

Anh anna Sohum Anuj Kamar

Q
m
J,.Ea Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer Director
0% [DIN: 01363666] :

per Yogesh Midha
Partner

Membership No.: 94941
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: June 16, 2018 Date: June 16, 2018

[DIN: 01400273]
Place: Gurugram
Date: June 16,2018

W o

Kapil Mohan Bhutani’ ha Gupta
Director and Chief Financial Offiter Company Secretary
[DIN: 00554760] Membership No : 29443
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: June 16, 2018 Date: June 16, 2018



Affle (India) Private Limited

(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Statement of Changes in Equity

Equity Share Capital

Particulars Number of shares Amount (Rs.)

Balance as at April 01, 2016 24,288,314 242.88

Issued during the year - -

Balance as at March 31, 2017 24,288,314 242.88

Issued during the year - -

Balance as at March 31, 2018 24,288,314 242.88
Other Equity

Share application  Capital contribution from
money pendin; Parent-Employee Share .
Particulars Retained earnings a"i |E|enl ] Besad ga;; et Total
(Refer note 41) (Refer note 35)

As at April 01, 2016 (46.89) 0.00 1.64 (45.25)
Profit for the year 6.12 - - 6.12
Other comprehensive income 3.13 - - 313
Total comprehensive income 9.25 - - 9.25
Written back during the year - (0.00) - (0.00)
Share based payments (Refer to note 35) - - 343 3.43
As at March 31, 2017 (37.64) - 5.07 (32.57)
Profit for the year 88.31 - - 88.31
Other comprehensive income (0.08) - - {0.08)

88.23 - - 88.23

Share based payments (Refer to note 35) - - 3.11 3.11
As at March 31, 2018 50.59 - 8.18 58.77
As per our report of even date
For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
ICAI Fimm's Registration No.: 101049W/E300004
Chartered Accountants V4
per Yogesh Midha Anuj Kumar
Partner Mannging Director & Chief Executive Officer Director

Membership No.: 94941
Place: Gurugram
Date: June 16, 2018

[DIN: 01363666]
Place: Gurugram
Date: June 16,2018

[DIN: 01400273]
Place. Gurugram
Date: June 16, 2018

Kapil Mohan Bhuta -‘
Director and Chief Finfincial Of
[DIN: 00554760]
Place: Gurugram
Date: June 16, 2018

Place: Gurugram
Date: June 16, 2018

g W



Affle (India) Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Affie (India) Private Limited ("the Company™), is a private limited Company, domiciled 1n India, incorporated videc
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, and is a subsidiary of Affle Holdings Pte Ltd. The Compeany was
incorporated on 18 August 1994. The Company is engaged in providing mobile advertisement ssrvices througy
information technclogy and software development services for mobiles.

The vegistersd office of the Company is situated at 402, 4% Floor, Akruti Oriorn, Shraddhanand Ruad, Vile Parle (Easi:
Muranbai, India — 400057 The principal place of business is in Haryana, India.

These financial statements were authorized for 13sue it accordance with the resolution of directors ot June 16, 2518
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Ccmpany have been prepared and presented in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20135 as
amended from time to time.

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with the accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Corapanies Act
2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).

These financiai statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 are the first financial statements of the Comngany

under Ind AS8. Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition has been summerized i iNot:
38.

The financiai statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as & going cencern and under the historicai
cost convention, except for ~ertain financia! assets and fizancial liabilities that are measured at fair vaiu.e 43
required under relevant Ind AS.

The financial statements are presented m Indian rupees (INR) and all values are rounded 1o the neares:
millions upto two decimals, except when otherwise stated. Amounts less than INR 1 million bas been showr
as “0”

i1) Business combinations under common control

Common control business combination means a business combination involving entities or businesses
which all the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the same party both before and
after the business combination, and that control is not transitory

The Company accounts for its business combination under common control using pooling of interest method
of accounting as per Appendix C of Ind AS 103. Acquisition related costs are recognized in the staternent of
profit and loss as incurred. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet
the definition for recognition are recognized at their carrying amount at the acquisition date.

Transferor’s reserves shall be preserved and shall appear m the financial statements of the transferee in the
same form in which they appear in the financial statements of the wransferor.

Acquisition date shall be the beginning of the preceding period in case the common control is established
prior to such date. However, .f business combination had occurred after such date, the acquisition date shai
be considered only from that date

1i1) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classificaton

An asset 1s treated as current when it1s
R

0\&"1«.\\;
; \
S f
";‘1%
)'g

l"‘

v-‘A\




Affie (India) Private Limited
Notes forming part of financiai statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

1v)

¢ Expected to be reaiized or mtended to be sold or consumed in normal cperating cycle
o Held primarily for the purpose of trading
e Expected 1o be realized witain twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivaient unless restricted from being exchanged or used o settie a hability foi -
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
e Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
e tisheld primarily for the purpose of trading

e It is due 1o be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve montht ™
after the reporting perind

The Company classifies ali other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and ligbilities

The operating cysle 1s the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization v vy b
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as s operating cvele

Property, plant and equipment

On transition to Ind AS, the Corpany nas elected to continue with the carrying value of alt of its provescy
plant and equipment recognized as at 1 April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use ihat ¢ )
value as the deemed cost of the propercy, plant and equinment

Property, plant and equipment are stated art cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumualated wapar:
losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price and other directly atir:butable cost incurred in oringing
asset to its working condition for the intended use and initial estimate of decornmiss oning, restoris
similar liabilities. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase tice All
reparr and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as mcurred.

Subsequent costs are capitalized on the carrying amount or recognized as a separdie asset, as approprias
only when future economic benerits associated with the item are probable 1o flow to the Company and cos
of the item can be measured reliably

The gaur: or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an 1tem of property, plant and equipment is deterrsined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recoguized ~ it
statement of profit and loss on the date of disposal or retirement

Depreciation on property, piant and equipment

Depreciation on property, plant and equupinert is caiculated on a pro-rata basis from the date on wineh o
asset 1s ready to use, using wriiten down value method ("WDV") over the useful lives of the assets estun

by the management, which are in line with the useful lives prescribed under Schedule II o the Coraparie:
Act, 2013, '

The Company has used the following rates to provide depreciation on its property, plant and equipment:

Asset Category | Useful lives estimated by management
Computers | 3 years
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Office equipments | 5 years
Furniture and fixtures ! 10 years
Motor vehicles l 8 years

The residual value of these assets has been considered at 5% of original cost to the Company.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its intangible zsset

recognized as at 1 April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed
cost of the intangible asset.

v

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recogrition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization. Internally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the stateriznt of
profit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets are arnortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization
period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the assef are
considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets is recognized in the statement of profis
and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gaips or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference betweern the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and
loss when the asset is derecognized.

Goodwill 1s 1nitially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and
the amount recognized for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identizble
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggrezals
consideration transferred, the Company re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets
acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be
recognized at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net zusety
acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognized in OCI and accumuiafed i
equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognizes the
gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCT

After iitial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Company’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combinatior:,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Research and development cosis

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual protect is
recognized as an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate all the following.

e The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale
¢ Itsintention to complete the asset

e Its ability to use or sell the asset : ' i
e  How the asset will generate future economic benefits
e The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset

o
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o The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangibie asset during
development.

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an assef, the cost model is applied
requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortization of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is
amortized on a straight line basis over the period of expected future benefit from the related pre Jeu

Amortization is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. During the period of development, the ass
tested for impairment anmally

A summary of amortization periods applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as below:

Asset Category | Useful lives estimated by management
Computer software ! 5 years
Mobile application | 4 years

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of
the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cosi
also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of tne
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfiiment of ihe
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrengement conveys a right t¢ us:
the asset or assets, even if that night is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

For arrangements entered mto prior to 1 April 2016, the Company has determined whether the arrangerent
contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

Where the Company is the lessee

A lease 1s classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease

Finance leases are capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apporticned
betweern finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the hability. Finance charges are recognized in finance costs 1n the statement of profi.
and loss. Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct costs of lease are capitalized.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that
the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of
the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term

Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental te ownership of an asset substantially vest with the
lessor are recognized as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense 1 ti¢
statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired [f
any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount  An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
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(CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for ax
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those frov
other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverabie
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present valus using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into acecunt, 15 1)
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations arz

corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair
value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations wideh ars
prepared separately for each of the Company’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a pericd of five years. For longe:
periods, a long term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth vear

Impairuent losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized it the
statement of profit and loss.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remeairing
useful life. '

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previcusly recognizad
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. if such indication exists, the Company
estimates the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment ioss
1s reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoveranie
amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the cartying amount of
the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have beei
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal 1s recognized in the statement of profit arid loss.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument 1s any contract that gives nise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liatslicy
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, m the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

e  Debt mnstruments at amortized cost
e Debt instruments at tair value thronugh other compreliensive income (FVTOCI)
¢ Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

o  Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A “debt mstrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contxa"mm
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cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely paymeras of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding,

This category is most applicable to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets,ars
subsequent‘y measured at amortized cost using the Effective Interest Rate (“EIR”) method. Amortized oss

is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization 1s included m finance income ir the statement of profit und
loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. This caiegory
generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A “debt instrument” is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPP1.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCT}). Howeaver,
the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or toss in
the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized
in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss (P&L). Interest earncd whilst hiding
FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debr instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC], is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cozt o
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVIPL. However, such election is considered only if doing so reduces or elirvinaies
a measwrement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as “accounting mismatch”).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognizad
11 the statement of profit and loss.

Equity [nvestments

All equity invesuments 1n scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity mstruments which ars held
for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair vahie. The
Company makes such election on an mstrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on intig
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OC]
to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer ths
cumulative gain or loss within equity. !
Equity mnstruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value. All changes in fair value
including dividend are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

=
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Derecognition
A firancial asset is de-resognized only when

* Therights to receive cash flows from the assex have expired, or

¢ The Company has transferred iis rights to recetve cash flows from the asset or has assumed er
obligation to pay the received casi fiows in full without material Gelay w a third party uader ¢
through’ arrangement, and cither (a) the Company has transferred substantiaily ali the risks aud
rewards of the asset, or {b) the Company has neither transferred ner retained substentiaily i ¢h-
. risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. '

Whea the Company has transferred 1ts 11ghits to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered info a pmse:
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownersai;
When it has neither transferred nor retamed substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asse;

LI

transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset 1o the exter
Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company alsv recognizes an associated Hability.
transferred asset and the associated liavility are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and cblig
that the Company has retained.

Irnpairment of financial asseis

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit less (ECL ) model for measurema:y and
recognition of impairmens 'oss ori the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt insiruments, and are measurec at gmortized cost <. 2., loans, Jdets
securities, deposits, trade receivabies and bank balance

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’® for recognition of wmpairzeni loss allowence oz
recervables. The apphcatlon ot simplified approach does not require the Company to wack changes in
risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment icss allowance based on lifeume ¥C Lz at each repoviing date.
from its initial recognition.

For recogrition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines thias
whether there has been a significant increase n the credit nisk since initiai recognition. i eredit risk hies ros
wcreased significantly, 12-month expected credit 1oss (ECL) is used to provide for impatrment Joss. Hoaver,
if credii risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quad: ty ¢ e
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since nial reccg,
then the entiiy reverts to recognizing impeairment loss allowance based on 12-menth ECL,

Lifetime BCL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible defaalt events over the expected liie
of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which resulrs from dersalt
events that are possible withiri 12 months arter the reporting date

FCI. is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are Gue to the Compeny i accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e.. all cash shortfalls), discounted ax the
original EIR

The Company uses a provision matrix to determme impairment ioss allowance or: portfolio of its wads
receivables. The vrovision matrix is based om its historically observed default rates over the expected L.fe o
the trade receivables and s adiusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, ihe hisierical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ experse
1 the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head other expenses in the statement of
profit and loss. For the financial assets measured as at amortized cost, ECL 1s presented as an allowance i.¢..
as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the-net
carrying amount. Until the a‘;‘aet meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowae
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from the gross carrving amount.
Firancial liabiiities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial xecognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through soefic o
loss, loans and borrowings or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized inially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowing:. »1:
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities inciude borrowings, trade and other payables.

Subsequent measurement

The measvrement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at faw value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and #12:
liabilities designated upon initiai recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Firancial ligoviiii; i,
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the sear term . Thi

category also includes derivarive rinancial instruments entered into by the Company that are ot desigr:
as hedging mstruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequertly measured at amortiza? wosi
using the FIR method. Gains and iosses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recogr:
as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost 1s calculated by taking into account any discournt or premium on acquisition and fees or costz
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance cests in the statement of v ofit
and loss

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 14,
De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelisd ¢
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substa
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such au exchangs or
modification 1s treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recogrition of a aew liability The
difference in the respective carrying amounts 18 recognized in the statement of prefit and loss

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if s
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to setile on »
net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date

¢
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presumption that the transaction o sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

e Inthe absence ol « principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or habilily.

The principal or the miost advantageous market must be accessible by the Compariy

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participauts would i
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best inerest.

A fair value measurement of a non-firancial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generats
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another raarket parteinac:
that weuld use the asset in its highest and best use. '

The Company usas valuetion techniques that are appropriate in the eircurestances and for which sufficuwes
date are avatlable i measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant obse-vable iriputs and miriraizicq
use of utobservable inputs

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statemeots ars
categorized within the fau velue hierarchy, described as follows, based oa the lowest ievel input et -
signiiicant 1o the fair value measuremeri as a whole:

o Level | — Quoied (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for idertical assets or liabilities,

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fai
measurement 1s directly or indirectly observable

Jall

»  Level 3 -— Vzluatien techniques for which the lowest level input that is sign.ficant v wae fai value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and labilities that are recognized n the financial statements on a recining basis, the Compaiy
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorizstio
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whele) at the eod of
each reporting period

At each reporting date, the managemen: analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilites wiich
are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per thie Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, e
management or its expert verifies the major inputs applied in the iatest valuation by agreeing *he inforeruaii
in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extenr that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the Compar.
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenuc =
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account cortractuatly
defined terms of payment and exciuding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government

The specific recognition critenia discussed below must also be met before revenue is recognized
Advertisement
Revenue from rendering of advertisemerit services 1s recognized on accrual basis as and when services are

rendered based on-the terms of contracts The Company collects taxes on behalf of the government znd,
therefore, it is not an economic benefit flowing to the Company. Hence, it is excluded from revenue.
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Software development

Revenue from software development comprises income from time & material and fixed price contizck
Revenue with respect ic tme & material contracts is recognized when the related services are perforimad
Pevenue fvoma fixed price cordracts is recognized in accordance with the proportionate ccmnplation 1)
which is determined by reierence (o the mileslone achieved as per the teims of the coniracr. The Cowner .
coliects taxes on behall’ of the government and, therefore, it is not an economdc benefit flowing 1o e
Coempany Hence, 1t is excluded from revenue,

Interest

For all debt instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective mteres,
rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts ovar the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrving ariou
of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective intees:
rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering ail the contractual terms of the finanzizi
instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income 1s mcluded in other income mn ths
statement of profit and loss

Fareign enrrencies
Functional and presentational currency
The Company’s financiul staiemernts are presented in mdian Rupees (INR) which is also the

functional currency. Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic exvirotment in w
entify operates and is normally the currency in which the entity primarily generates and expends cash

Transactions and balences

Transactions in foreign currencies are nitially recorded at their respective functional currency spot o
the date the transachon first gualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and habilities denorirated in [ ;
currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date, Differzness
arising on settlement or transiation of monetary items are recognized 1 statement of profit and loss

Noi-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost m a foreign currency are tanslaied Wiy,
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Zetirement benefit in the forta of provident furd is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has ne
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes cemiribitiion
pavable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure in the statement of profit and loss, when an exployie
renders the related service

The Company operates an unfunded defined venefit gratuity plan for its empioyees. The cost of proviving
wenefits under this plan is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each vear-end. asing the proiscie:!
uiit ciedit method and charged to staternent of profit and loss. Remeasurements comprising of actuaria
and losses, are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit 1o vetz
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur Remeasurements are not reclassified to Statement of
profit and loss in subsequent periods.
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Net 1nterest is calculated by applymg the discount rate to the net defined benefit lability or asset. The
Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss:

e  Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailmencs
and non-routine settlements; and
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* \'et tercet expense Or income

Accumulated leave, v/hich is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, 1s treated as shortnuarvr“1
eteployee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount the!
jt expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporiiug date

The Company ueats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months. as long-wern
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for bases
en the actuarial valuation vsing the projected vt credic method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are
mumediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferved tax.

Current tax

Cuirznt income-tax assets and liabilities is measured at the amount expected to be recovered §rom or pad
the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax ! laws
used t¢ compute the amourt are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Ciyrent
income tax velating to items recognized outside staternent of profit and loss is recognized outside staweren:
of rofit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Managemer:t periodically evali
»0uit10ns taken m the tax returns with respeci to situations in which applicable tax vegulations are su
interpretation and establishies provisions wherz approgriate.

4

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tay bases of assets,
and liavilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable timing differences, sxcept:

e  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or Hability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the fime of the transaction. atfects neithe:
the accourting profit nor taxable profit or loss i
Deferred tax assets are recognized for ali deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable tha
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
anused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 1o the extent izt
1t 18 no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferrsd ta
asset t be utilized. Moreover, deferred tax is recogmzed on temporary differences arising on mvestments in
branches unless the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probakle thit
the temporary difference will not reverse in the fcreseeable future

The unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent
that 1t has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred rax asset to be recoversd

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates tnat are expected to apply in the year whe the
agsef is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. '

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside statement of profit and loss is recognized outside statesies.
of profit and loss (either 1n other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognizedin
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity

¢V

’,f{ﬁf?
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Affle (fvdic) Private Limited
Notes Doming pavt ¢f financial statements for the vear ended 31 Macch 2018

xvi)

vidi)

Kik)

Dwverved tax assety and deferiod tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceanle righ sxists io gel oif cr, r=:
tax ass2ng agelast suiren tax dabiiities and the deferred taxes relate to the same t2zable ant ity aind (e vawm
w@tion adtuonty

Fiimamine Alternate Tas (MAT)

Minimum Alteraate Tax (WIAT) credit 18 recognized as deferred asset only when it 15 probeble tha.
profit ‘ml! be available against which the credit can be utilized. In the year in which the MAT credit tees, » o
eligible to berecognized as ax asset, the said asset is created by way of a eredit w the stalement of prod. v
loss account. The Company reviews the same at sach balance sheet date and writes down the carrying &x
of MAT eredut entitlement w the exten: i is no longer probable that the Company will pay norms) = .
tax during the specified period.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the valai:ce sheet coraprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term dexos -
with an original matusity of three wmonths or less, which are subject w an insigraficans visk of changa:
value

Fer the purpose of the statement cf cash flovss, cast and cash equivalents somsist of cest
ienosits. as defitied dbsie. net of vutwianding
Compaay's cash mansgewerd.

=ank overdrafis as they are considered an egial peri v 'l

SrovieiGns

past svent, 1t 13 prebable duat an outtlow of resources embodying economic benefit

the notigation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obirgatzvar.
v 3 " 1 . . .y

provisien ia presenied in the staement of profit and loss net of any reurbursemzi

Provizons ars vecogrized whar fhe Company has a present obligation: (legal or consiru

If the eifect of the ume value of money is material, provisions are discouned RS12E A CLITEIL: I -lai Juis
¥ . pi £ e

reilects, wihen appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discountiag is used, the noerzase w i
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

NS ST

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to eflsct the cuirent best ast
)
L

fit i3 iy longer probable that an cutflow of resourcss would be required te setrie the obligatiou, the oz

s eversed

Loutingens lapilities
A eortingent liabiiity is a possible ottization ihat anses from past events whose exisiencs wall be confivczen
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of ome or more uncertain fuaire evenis bavond the coauop of
i_oinpany of d presem obligation hat is not 1ecognized because it is not probadie that an cutflow of resco.aes
w:ll be required to seitle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises ‘i exwemely teue Sassy whers
18 & lahlity that carnot ve revognized beceuse it cannot be measured 1eliably, The €
recogize a contingent liabitvy Wit discloses ifs existence in the financial statercents

.

COEY O T

T

=

Sharc based rrayrments

Employees (ncluding senior executives) of the Company recerve remuneration 12 the forra of sharg-baser.
payments, whereby employees zender services as consideracon sor equity instruments {equuty-szftled
transactions).

Equity-settled transactions

The cos: of equity-settled transactions 15 determuned by the fair value at the date when the grant is made usits:
an appropriate valuation mode!




Affle (India} Private Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013

LK)

XXi)

xXii)

That cost s recognized, together with & corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBY") reser s o,
eguity. over the period in which the service conditions are fulfilled in employes benefiis expenae, The
cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at each reperting date untii the vasiing da!:
reflecis the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of tie number o
equity instruments that will ultimately vest The statement of profit and loss expense or credic for a pesc.
represents the movement in cumujative expense tecognized as at the beginning and end of that period apd 1.
recognized m empioyee benefits expense.

Service conditions are not taken into avcount wher determining the grant date fair value of awards, Lut the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s best estimate of .he nimbes o
equty instruments that will gitimately vest :

No expeiise is 1ecognized for awards thar de not ultimately vest because service condrtions have as' bees
met.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributshie to
2quity shareholders by the weighred average number of equity shares outstanding dur ing the year.

Diluted EFS amounts are calculated by divicing the profit or loss attributable to equety folders ¢
Coropary (after adjusting the corresponding income/charge for dilutive potential equity shares) b -
weghted average rumber of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number oi
Bquity spares that would be issued on coirversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares itrio Equiry shacas

Segment reporting

Ldentification of segmeni;

Operating segmenis are repored 1 a manner consistent with the interral reporting provided to the caics
wperatiag decision maker (CGDM) Orly those business activities ate idermified as operabinig segmen: o
which the operating results are regularly reviewed by the CODM to make decisions about resource alloserios:
and perforinance measurement,

Inter-segment transfers

The Company generally accounts for intersegment sales and transfers at cost plus approvriate margiis.

Allocation of common costs

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relative contribution of each sey - it
io the wtal commcn costs.

Unallocated items
Unallocated 1tems include general income and expense items which are not allocated to any business segmen
Segment accounting policies

The Company prepares its segment informatior. in conformity with the accournting policies adopted for
orepaving and presenting the financial statemernits of the Company as a whole

Recent accounting pronouncements issued but not yet effective

The amendments to standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Compaay’s
tinancial statements are disclosed below The Company intends to adopt these standards, 1f spplicable, &

en
they become effective. " ' T




Affie (India) Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended 31 Maich 2018

The Ministry of Corporate Atffairs (MCA) has issued the Companies (Indiaz1 Acceunting S‘la:.;d'vv.‘:'df{,
Amendsnent Rules, 2017 and Cempanies (Indian Accounting Standazds) Amendment Rules 2018 wmendir,y
the following standard.

Ind AS 115 Reveaune from Contracts with Cusiomers )
Revenue from contracts with customers outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to wis
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers The standard replaces most current re:

rscognition gnidance. The core principle for the new standard is for companies to recognize revenus to G FURN
the transfer of goods or services to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration to which the company
expects 1o be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The new standard also will resuli in enh: .« e
disciosures about revenue, provide guidance for transactions that were not previously addre
comprehensively including service revenues and contract modifications and improve guidance for multipic-

element arrangerents. The new standard will come into effect for the annual reporting periods beginaing o
or after April 1, 2018,

The Company is evaluating the requitements of the new standard and the effect on the financial stexemeris -«
expected to be insignificant.

Amendments to Ind AS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Lossas

The amendments clarify thet an entity needs to consider whether the tax laws vestrict the sources of taxahis
profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary diffursrice:
Furthennore, the amendinents provide guidance on how an entity should determine fune taxable crofits wv!
exgizin the circumstances in which texable profit may include the recovery for some assets for iy
their carrying amount.

tntities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on iratial appiication :
amendments, the change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may be recogn
opening 1etaineG earnings (or in another component of equity, as appropriate), without allocating fic - 7
between openiug retained carnings and other components of equity. Entities applying this relief nust dic i,
the fact

These amendments are effecuive for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018. These amendrments
are not expected to have any impact on the Company as the Company has no deductible temporary differz
or assets that are in the scope of the amendments.

Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Appendix clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recogniticn of the 1etaic:
asset, expense or mcome (or part of it) on the de-recognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liazili:,
relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially cecogoize:
the non-monetary asset or nen-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. (f there are rmuttipl.-
payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine the transaction date for each pavient or receiz:
of advance consideration

Butities may apply the Appencix sequirements on a fully retrospective basis. Alierpatively, aa entity ranv apcs
these requirements prospectively to all assets, expenses and income 1 its scope that are initially recon '

on or after:
(1) The beginning of the reporung period in which the entity first applies the Appendix, or
(i1 The begmning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in the financis/

statements of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the Appendix.

The Appendix is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018. However, since the
Company’s current practice is in line with the interpretation, the Company does not expect any effect on its
financial statements.




Affle (India) Private Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31,2018

(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

3. Property, plant and equipment

Particulars Computers Kafaitiscednd (_')ﬁ'l:ﬂ.' Motor Vehicles Total (-spllal Veork
fixtures equipments in Progress
Gross block
As at April 01, 2016 3.69 - 1.44 0.35 5.48 1.26
Additions 0.21 1.53 0.13 - 1.87 -
Disposals 0.20 - 0.02 - 0.22 -
Capitalised - - - - - 1.26
As at March 31, 2017 3.70 1.53 1.55 0.35 7.13 -
Additions 0.37 - - 1.60 1.97 -
Disposals 2.14 - - - 2.14 -
As at March 31, 2018 1.93 1.53 1.55 1.95 6.96 -
Accumulated Depreciation
As at April 01, 2016 - - - - - -
Charge for the year 221 048 0.69 0.12 3.50 -
Deductions - - = = - -
As at March 31, 2017 2.21 0.48 0.69 0.12 3.50 -
Charge for the year 0.71 0.34 0.38 0.40 1.83 -
Deductions 2.04 - - - 2.04 -
As at March 31, 2018 0.88 0.82 1.07 0.52 3.29 -
Net block
As at March 31, 2018 1.05 0.71 0.48 1.43 3.67 -
As at March 31,2017 1.49 1.05 0.86 0.23 3.63 -
As at April 01, 2016 3.69 - 1.44 0.35 5.48 1.26

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Affle (India) Private Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31,2018
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

4, Other Intangible Assets

Particulars Computer Mobile

Intangible assets

A S Total under

Software application dévilpment
Gross block
As at April 01, 2016 23.96 44.17 68.13 39.75
Additions 0.34 66.31 66.65 -
Disposals - - - -
Capitalised - - - 36.69
As at March 31, 2017 24.30 110.48 134.78 3.06
Additions 0.42 37.92 38.34 -
Disposals - - - -
Capitalised - - - 3.06
As at March 31,2018 24.72 148.40 173.12 -
Accumulated Amortisation
As at April 01, 2016 22.21 12.86 35.07 -
Charge for the year 045 19.12 19.57 -
Disposals - = - -
As at March 31, 2017 22.66 31.98 54.64 -
Charge for the year 0.70 29.60 30.30 -
Disposals - - - -
As at March 31, 2018 23.36 61.58 84.94 -
Net block
As at March 31, 2018 1.36 86.82 88.18 -
As at March 31, 2017 1.64 78.50 80.14 3.06
As at April 01,2016 1.75 31.31 33.06 39.75

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Affle (India) Private Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Financial assets

S. Investments

Non-current
As at
March 31,2018 March 31,2017  April 01, 2016

Investment at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

101 (March 31, 2017: 101, April 01, 2016; Nil)

preference shares with face value of Rs, 10 each and 0.20 0.20

with premium of Rs. 1,972 each in 000 : )
Marketplaces Private Limited

50 (March 31, 2017: Nil, April 01, 2016: Nil) equity
shares with face value of Rs. 10 each and with
premium of Rs. 1,219 each in 00O Marketplaces
Private Limited

Total 0.26 0.20 -

Aggregate amount of unqouted investments 0.26 0.20

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of
investments ) B -

6. Loans

Non-current Current

As at As at
March 31,2018 March 31,2017  April 01,2016  March 31,2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

At amortised cost

Security deposits
Secured, considered good 583 6.31 6.28 0.98

- 5.08

Loans to employees
Unsecured, considered good - - 0.64 0.39 G 26
Total 5.83 6.31 6.28 1.62 0.39 5.34

7. Other financial assets
Current
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017  April 01, 2016

At amortised cost

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise
stated
Interest accrued but not due on deposit o010 0.07 0.66

Unbilled revenue [net of allowance for impairment
amounting to Rs. 3.91 million (March 31, 2017: Rs. 7719 38.85 60.51
1.97 million, April 01, 2016: Rs 3.06 million)]

Advances to related parties (Refer note 30) . - 6.71
Other financial assets . 0.01
Total 71.29 38.93 67.88

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets which generate a fixed or variable interest income for the Company. The carrying value may be affected by
changes in the credit risk of the counterparties

=3



Affle (Indiu! Private Limited

Notes forining part of financial siatements for the vear ended March 31, 2018
(Amounti in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

8. Income Tax

The major component of income tax expense are as follows:

(a} Statement of profit and loss:

Current income tax:
Current income tax charge

Adjustinent in respect of current income tax of previous year
Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss

(b) Other Comprehesive Income (OCI) section:

Deferred tax relating to items in OCI in the year:

Net {loss) /gain on measurement of defined benefit plans
Incorae tax charged to GCI

(<) Reconciliation of tax expense and the ing profit

For the vear ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
46,20 1.82
1.45 4.14
47.65 5.96

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(0.04) 1.40
(0.04) 1.40

Accounting profit before income tax

At Indie's statutory income tax vate of 34 61% (March 31, 2017: 30.90%)
Share based payment

Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes

Rate difference

Effective income tax rate of 35.05% (March 31, 2017: 49.34%)

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss
(d) Deferred tax:

Deferred tax reiates to the following:

Fixed assets: imnpact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/
amerhzation charged for the financial reporting

Impact of fair valuation of financial instruments

Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit aud loss in the current year
ard earlier years but allowable for tax purposes on payment basis

Allowance for impainment of trade receivables and unbilled revenue

Losses available for offsetting against future taxable income

Tax deductible goodwill

MAT credit entitlement

Deferred tax asset (net)

Reconciliation of deferred tax asset (net);

Opening balance

Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in profit or loss
Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in OCI

MAT credit entitlement

Closing balance of deferred tax asset (net)

March 31,2018 March 31, 2017

135 %96 12.08
47.05 374

1.08 1.06

0.44 039
(0.92) 078
47.65 5.96
47.65 5.96

Balance sheet

Itiplied by the applicable tax rate(s) for the year ended March 31, 2018

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

2.40 049 1.66
0.01 0210 0.77)

427 3.05 458

10.11 8.05 §.22

. 2.98 482

(11 85) (8.01) (4.81)

- 12.61 7.04

4.94 18.96 20.74

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

April 01, 2016

18.96 20.74 31.44
(1.45) 4.14) (6.73)
0.04 (1.40) {0.78)
(12.61) 376 3.19)
4.94 18.96 20.74

deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to mcome taxes levied by the same tax authority

In assessing the realisibility of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it 1s probable, that some portion, or all, of the deferred tax assets will
not be realised The ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the
temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the projected future taxable income and tax plannmg strategies in making this
assessment, Based on the level of historical taxable income and projections for future 1axable incomes over the periods in which the deferred tax assets

are deductible, management believes that it is probable that the Company will be able to realise the benefits of those d

slerences in future

k

L



Affle (Indiz) Private Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(Amount jn INR million, unless otherwise stated)

9. Tax Assets (nef)

Advance tax (net of provision for tax amounting to
Rs. 43.83 millicn (March 31, 2017: Rs. 9.88 million,

April 61, 2016: Rs. 8.71 million))
TDS Refundable

Total

10. Other Assets

Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid expenses

Deferred lease expense on security deposits paid
Balance with statutory/government authorities

Advances other than capital advances

Unsecured, considered good

Total

11, Trade Recevables

Upsecured, considered good

Trade receivables from related parties (Refer to note

30)

Trade receivabies from other thap related parties

Unsecured, considered doubtful

Trade receivables from other than related parties

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables

Total

Non-current

The movement in allowance for impairment of trade receivables is as follows:

Opening balance
Additicns

Bad debts written off (net of recovery,

Closing balance

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person.

For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer to note 30

Trade receivables are non-mterest bearmg and are generally on terms of 60 to 90 days

Current
As at As at
March 31,2018  March 31, 2017 April 01,2016  March 31,2018 March 31, 2017 Aprit 01, 2016
- - 3.16 24.35 28 48 2431
b = = - 1.22
- - 3.16 24.35 28.48 25.53
Non-current Current
As at As at
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016  March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016
- - - 0.11 1.16 1.80
0.05 0.32 0.86 0.38 0.49 0.8
- - - 6,62 16 16 23 10
- - - 4.63 6.65 4.26
0.05 0.32 0.86 11.74 24.46 30.05
—_—
As at
March 31,2018 March 31,2017 April 01, 2016
4.26 46.23 23.31
153.97 89.07 139.68
153.23 135,30 162.99
25.30 24.09 22.27
25.30 24,09 22.27
(25.30) (24.09) (2227
158.23 135.30 162.99
For the year ended
March 31,2018  March 31, 2017
24.09 2227
11.22 11.21
(10.01) (9.39)
25.30 24.09



Affie {Iniigy Private Limited

Notes fortaing part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(Armount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

12. Cash and Bank Balances

(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with banks;
In cumrent accounts (includiag in transit amount of Rs. 41.66 million)

Deposits with original maturity for less than three months
Cash on hand

Total

(ii) Other bank balances

Depnsits with originzl maturity for more than three months but less than
twelve months

for ine purpose of the statement of cash flow, cash and zash equivalents comprise the following:

Balances with banks:
In current accounts {includiug in transit amount of Rs. 41,66 million)
Deposits with original maturity for less than three months

Cash on haya

Total

As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016
116.36 57.66 5037
20.00 - 27.00
0.35 023 1.32
136.71 57.89 78.€¢
8.20 29 58 -
8.20 29.53 i
As at
March 31, 2038 March 31,2017 April 01, 2616
116.36 57.66 50.37%
20.00 - 27.G
6.35 023 132
136.71 57.89 78.59

The detauis of specified bank notes held and transacted during the period November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016 are provided below'-

Ciesing cash in hand as at November 8, 2016
(+} Penritted receipts

1) Permitted payments

{-3 Arawvurt depcsied i banks

Closing ¢ash i aand as at Decerper 30, 2016

Specified bank notes

Other denomination

Totaj

otes
0.92 0.15 1.07
- 0.20 0.20
- 0.20 0.29
0.92 0.92
g 0.45

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Atfe (Indin) Private Limited

Notes formicg part of financial statements for the vear ended Mavch 31, 2018
(Amount in INR millios, nnless otherwise: stated)

13. Share Capita!

Particulars As at

Marehi 31,2018 March 31,2017 April 01, 2016

Authorived share capitai
23,000,000 (Marea 31, 2017 25,196,000, April 01, 2016 25,060 J00) equity
shares of &5 19 euch 250,00 250.00 250.00

Issued share ¢apital
24,285,314 (March 21, 2017: 24,288,314, Aprii 01, 2016 24,288.314) equity R i
shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up AL 242.88 24288

242,88 242.88 242.88 ,

Subscrined and Cafly paid-up share cupital
24,248,314 (Maren 31, 2017: 24,288,314, April 01, 2016 24,288 ,314) equity

shares 0 Rs. 10 eazh fully paid up 242,88 247288 242,88
242.88 242,88 242,88

A, Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding a* the beginning and end of the yenr )
As nt

§

Partieulars | Mareh 31, 2018 I March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016{Profocinn) !
| __No. of shares Amt | No. of shares Amt No. of shazes At |
Opening bilance ‘ 24,288,314 242838 24,285314 24288 24385 3i4 2298 )
Shares issued I - . = - i
Charcs bought bag T | - : . '
sing Balzace | 24,285,314 | 242.88 24,288,314 242,38 | 24,288,314 2a%
. TermsThghts artached to equity shares
The Compeny has on.y ane class of equite sharas having a par value of s 13 per share. The hotders of equuiy shares are entitled to cecetve dividends 2rd are es © one /3%e per share Y the exve  cr

.nun.ua' o, 2¢ealy sharekolders will be enbitlec to receive assets of the Company in proportion to the nuriver of sharss hele o the total equity shares outstanding 2s o1: thal date

C. Shares haid, by Holdiug Cempany, ulti kolding

pany and/or their subsidiaries

St of die equty siarss issued by the Company, shares keld by ite Holding Company, ultimate hoidiag company #nd iis subsidiaries are as below:
1 pany. P

Adgt
Papiuule
en = Mll'l'h.\l,h]la Macch 34, 2007 AHrii 1,2616 |
1A Houlwgs Fre Limited, Singay Itimzie Holding C ¥
120,270,367 (Mavsh 31 2417: 20,270,367, Amd 01, 2016:20,2 70, 367) equity b
, ,567, , ,210, ¥ ; B,

& shares of Rs 10 =ach fully paid up 20276 20276 2027¢ 1
| |

A Limiten, Unived Ingd bsitiney of A= Fuoidings Pte Lirited |

. . . e . ; |
N vlarch 31500 T 3274 480, Apnl 01, 2016: 3,474,480) equity shares of Rs 1474 347"
O oot dulles e ups '

Aftle Global Fte Limiiea (earhier knowr: as Affle Appstudioz Pre Ltd,, |

Singapore, subsidiary of Aflle Holdings Pte Limited

4017512 {Mafch 31,2017 543,432 ApriGl, 2010 $43.433) equity snares of D13 543 545

Rs 10 each fully pad up
— R j

D. Detsils of shareholcers holding mere than 5% shares

- - As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 Aprit 1, 2016
P " 3
jinciofSkaceroldex Percentage of Mumber of Percentage ol Numker of Fercenvage of
Number of shares beld Holding shares held Holding shares held Holdimg

Equity sgres n? s, 1€ each fully paid i ) )
Affle Hoidng: Pie v.imiteq, Singapore 20,279,367 83 a6 20,27C,367 83 46% 20,270,387 84.36%)
Affe Limived, “inited €angdom [ ] . 3,474,480 | 1431% 1474489 | K] 31~’f.,i
(Affle Clobal Pie Lerated, Singagore 40174.3 16 5450 . - | O

As por records of the Company, cluding s 1egister of shareliolders/ inembers and othe declaraticns receivea from shareholaers regarding benencial interest, the ubove starebolding
apresents sol ixgal and heneficiel ownerstups of shaies

o




Affte (India) Private Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

14. Borrowings

31, 2018

Non-Current

Current
As at As at

March 31,2018 March 31, 2017 April 01,2016  March 31,2018 March 31,2017 Apxil 01, 2016
Term loan from financial jnstitution (secured) 5.26 40.40 - 36.83 36 83
Less: Amount disclosed under the head 'Other - - {35.83) 14 85
current financial liabilities
Cash credit facility from bank (secured) 28.34
Total i 5.26 40.40 E ~28.3a E
Note:

a) Terta loan is secured by hypothecation of trade receivables, Cash credi
b) Details on analysis of borrowings i.e. interest rare, currency and terms

t facility has a pari pasu charge on receivables and book debts of present and vulu:

of repayments of borrowings

Particulars Currency Effective interest Terms of repayment -
rate

Term loan from {nnoven Capital India Pvt Ltd INR 19 39% Fixed equal principal amount of INR 2.07 million is payable along wich

thie interest on a monthly basis, for a period of 30 months starpng frova

Octaber 1. 2015
Term loan from Innoven Capital India Pvt Ltd. INR 19.51% Fixed equal principal amount of INR 1 million is payahle aloig vtk e

interest on a monthly basis, for a period of 30 months starting frem Ancil

1,2016
Cash credit facility from HDFC Bank INR 11.25% Interest is payable on monthly basis
15, Previsions

Non-Current Current
As at As at
March 31,2018  March 31,2017  April 01,2016 March 31,2018 March 31,2017 Apri! 01, 2016
Provision for empioyee benefits -
Provision for gratuity (Refer to note 28} 8.83 6.98 9.98 0.62 050 .39
Provision for leave benefits 2.59 214 - 0,39 0.25 375
Toral (A) 11.42 912 9.98 0.92 0.75 4.4
Other provisions
Provision for contingency (Refer to note 39) - - - 0.15 U.72 1Y
Total (B) - - G.15 6.72 .05
Total (A+ B} 11.42 9.12 9.98 1.07 1.47 5.8
Movement in provision for contingency:
For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017 April 01, 2016
At the beginning of the year 0.72 105 2.44
Wiite off/utilized during the yea (0.57) (0 33) (1.39)
0.15 0.72 1.95




AfDe (India) Private Limited

Motes forming part of financial stavements for the year ended March 31, 201&
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

16. Trade Payables

As at
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017 April 01, 2016
Current
Trade paysbles - dues of micro small and small enterprises
Trade payables - others* 220.24 160.08 22984
Total 220.24 160.08 229,84
*There is o amount due to related parties as at March 31, 2018 (March 31, 2017: Nil, April 01, 2016. Ni})
17. Other Current Financial Liabilities -
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31. 2017 April 01, 2016
At amortised cost
Current maturities of long term borrowings 36.83 36 832
Interes: zccrued Eut aiot dus on borrowings - ¢.53 097
Salary payable 24 89 19.57 .
Capital creditors - - 0.47
Others 273
ITotal 24.89 59.66 3827
Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
-irade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settlea or: 60-day terms
-For ternis and conditions with related parties, refer to note 30
18. Other Current Liabilities
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016
Statutory dues payable 17.62 116l 14.66
Advarze fom cuscomers 3,42 - 4,34
Deferred revenue = 104 -
I'otal 21.04 12.65 19.00

.r*"“;f?.‘;ﬁ.

gk\(i‘\

\.: \‘\.:u'\-‘




Affle {India) Private Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

19. Revenue from Operations

For the year ended

For the year ended

Mareh 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Saie of services
Consumer platform 769.40 529.81
Enterprise platform 68.16 126.48
Total 837.56 656.29

{The space has been intentionally ieft blank)




Afiie (!ndia) Private Limited

Muwies forming part of financia statements for the year ended March 31,2018

(Amoznt in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

20. Other Income

Irterest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost:
Bark deposits
Security deposits
Interest income on income-tax refunds
Bad debts recovered
Infrastructure support services
Liabilities no longer required written back
Gain on disposal of property, plants and equipment and intangible
assets (net)
Misceilaneous income

21, Erapioyee Benefits Expense

Salaries, wages and borus

Contribution te provident and other funds
Gratuity expense (Refer to note 28)
Employee share based payment expense
Staff welifare expenses

Less® Cost capitalised as intangible assets or intangible assets under
develorment (Refer to note 40)

22. Finance Costs

Iaterest on borrowings
interasc on incoime tax
Bank charges

Others

25. Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Depreciatior: of property, plant and equipments (Refer to note 3)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer to note 4)

For the year ended
March 31,2018 Mareh 31, 2017
1.92 184
0.18 0.95
= 111
030 1.23
7.62 5.66
408
3 0.05
1.20 0.87
11.22 15.79
For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
170.26 185.4¢6
529 5.94
251 2.56
311 343
2.88 291
184.05 200.30
(24.53) (24.07)
159.52 176.23
For the year ended
March 31,2018 Maren 31,2017
8.84 13.34
140 1.51
0.41 037
0.13 (.64
10.78 15.86
For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
1.83 3.50
30.30 19.57
32.13 23.07




Aflie (a:dia) Private Limited

Notes furming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(Amourt in INR million, unless ctherwise stated)

24, Other Expenses

Pewer and fuel

Rent

Raus und taxes

Insurance

Repair and. mainiznance - Others

L=gal ana professional fees (including payment to statutory auditor,
refer detenl below)*

Travel'sig and conveyarice

Communication costs

Printing and stationery

Recruitment expenses

Business promotion

Impairment allowarice of irade receivables and unbilled revenue
Advances given written off

Loss on disposal of property, plants and equipment and intangible assets
(aet;

Exchange differences (net)

Sofiware license fee

Projact development experses

Misceilaneous expenses

Iee3: Cost cattatised as intangible assets or ‘ntangible assets under
deveiopment (Refer to note 40)

¢

*Payment to statutory avditor:

As auditors:
Audit fze

Ir other capacity
Rembdursement of experises

25. Components of Other Comprehensive Income

The -disaggreganon of changes to other comprehensive income by each type of reserve 1n equity is shown beiow:

Re~messurement gains/ {losses) on defined benefit plans
Income tax effect
g 3
ey
P B S S N,

G e,
&)
" Ao
]

For the year ended

March 31, 2618 March 31, 2017
3.59 1.37
13.34 1929
102 4,37
0.83 .52
4,58 65.96
7.12 14.75
933 11.37
1.36 2,74
0.40 G.L5
025 054
32.15 36.63
11.22 izl
0.04 210
0.06 s
0.45 203
8.89 378
0.55 295
427 443
(10 23 {5.57)
§6.12 121.06
For the year ended T
March 31, 20618 March 31, 2017
2.25 120
0.20 02
2.45 147
For the year ended
March 31,2618 March 31, 2617
(0.12) 453
0.04 (140)
©0.08) 3.13




Atfle (ludiay Privare Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

26. Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS emounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the

year attributable to equity share holders by the weighted average number of equ.1y
shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calcuiating diluted EPS, the net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Profit attributable to equity hoiders for basic earnings 8831 6.12
Effect of ditution - -
Profit attributabie to equity nolders for the effect of dilution 88.31
Weighted Average suriber of eauity shares used for compuing basic earning per share P 5
(ia million) 2424 oy
Effect of dilution
Vveighted average number of equity shaves adjusted for the effect of diiution 24.29 24.29
Bastc EPS (absolute value in Rs.) 504 025
Diluted EPS (absolute value in Rs.) 364 073

27. Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make Jjudgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, the accompanying disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about

these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in
future periods

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has not made any significant judgement, that had a si gnificant effect or
the amounts recognised in the financial statements

Estimates 2nd assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Cempany has
pased 1ts assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
avout future develepments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyund the control of the Company, Such,
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur

(a} Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or CGU exceeds 1ts recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair vaiue less costs <f
disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at
arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset The value in use calculation s based on
a Discounted Cash flow ("DCF") model The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring
activities that the Company has nct yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being
tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expecied future cash-inflows and the growrn
rate used for extrapolation purposes, These estimates are most relevant 1o goodwill recognised by the Company Refer note 37 for further
disclosures.

(b) Allowance for impairment of trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable
amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing of the receivable balances and historical experience adjusted for forward-looking
estimates. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems them not to be collectible. For details of allowance for doubtful debts

please refer ro Note 11. e

J b\ I,.,MF.,\.OO-‘ .




Aftle (India) Frivate Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in 1NR million, unless otherwise stated)

27. Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions ("Contd")

(c) [ncome taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses
can be ctilised. Significani management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised based on the
timing, likely and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning suategies. Refer Note 8 for further disclosures

(<) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation acs
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved
valuation ang its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to chan;
each reporting date.

n the
ges in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewsd at

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management
considers the interest rates of governnient bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligaticn.

The mortality raie 1 based on publicly available mortality tables for ind:a Those mortality tables tend to change only at intervals in response to
demograpiiic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for India

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 28

(¢) Skare-based payments

The grant date fair value of employee stock options granted is recognised as an employee expense over the period that the empioyee becomes
unconditionally entitled to the options Estimating fair value for the share-based tzansactions require determination of the most apprepriate valuati~n
model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. The estimation requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the
vaiuation rnodel inciuding the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them The assumpios
and models used for estimating fair value for share-based transactions are disclosed in Note 35,

Z8. Emiployee Benefits
A. Defined Contribution Plans

Provideat Vund:

The Company makes contribution towards employees provideat fund. The Company has recognused Rs. 5.29 million (March 31, 2017: Rs. 5 94
million) as an expense towards contribution to this plan.

B. Defined Benefit Plans

Graguity:

The gratuity plan is goverried by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act, employees who have compieted five years of service are entitled
to specific benefits. The level of benefit provided depends on the member's length of service and salary retirement age. The employee is entitled to a
benefit equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for each completed year of service with part thereof in excess of six months. The same is payable on
termunation of service or retirement or death whichever is earlier

The present value of the obligation under such defined benet:t plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation as at the reporting date using ts
projected unit credit method, which recogaises eacn period of service as giving rise to additional units of employee benefit entitlement and measures
each urit separately fo build up the final obligatior.. The cbligations are measured ar the present value of the estimated fature cash flows. The
discount rate used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans is based on the market yields on Government houds
as at the date of actuarial valuation. Actuarial gains and losses (net of wx) are recognised immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCE)

I
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Affie (India) Private Limited

Notes torming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(Amount in INR miliion, uniess otherwise stated)

28. Employee Benefits (""Contd")

This 1s an unfunded benefit plan for qualifying employees. The scheme provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at
retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service

The following tables summarise the components of niet benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and uther
compzehensive income and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity plan:

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particitars

March 31,2018

Balance as at tne beginning of the year
Current service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid

Re-measurement (gains)/losses on obligation

7.48
1.95
0.56

(0.66)
0.12

March 31,2617 |
|
!

9.89 |
182 |
074
0 44)]
{4.53);

Balance as at the end of the year

9.45

7.48 !

L

)

Amouat recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

Particulars

March 31, 2018

March 31. 2917 |

Current service cost
Inisrest cost

=
th o
[« VY

182
0.74

Net expense ecognised in the statement of profit and loss

2.56

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income:

-

Particatars

March 31, 2018

March 31,2017

Re-measurement (gains)/losses on arising from change in demographic
assumption

Re-measurement (gains)/losses on arising from change in financial assumption

Re-measurement (gains)iosses on arising from experience adjustment

(4.53)

Net expense recognised in other comprenensive income i

0.12

(4.53)

The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining gratuity liability for the Company’s plan is shown below:

Particulars

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Discount raie

Future salary increase

Withdrawal rate (per annum)

- Upto 30 years

- From 31 years to 44 years

- From 44 years to 58 years

Retirement age (years)

Mortality rates inciusive of provision for disability

7.50%
8.00%

20.00%
10.00%
0.00%

58

100% of IALM (2006 - 08)

7.5C%
8.00%

20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
58
100% of IALM (2006 - 08)




Aifle (India) Private Limited

Notes forming par{ of financial statements for the year ended March 31,2018
(Amoyunt in INR million, ugless otherwise stated)

18 Emyployee Benefits " Contd")

The discouat rate is based on the prevaiiing market yields of indiar: Government Secuniiies as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated
term <f the obligations. The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take into account infiation, senterity,
pronwonon and other refevant factors, such as suppiy and demand in the employimient market,

~ quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31,2017 u[

i

! i
Present Value of Obligation at the 2nd of the period 9.45 748,
t

Impaet of the change in discount rave Ii
Impact due o ncrease of .50 % (0.50) {0.403!

Impeact due o decrease of 0.50 % 0.35 44

Impaci of iie change in salary rate :
Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 0.55 043 I
Impact due 10 decrease of (.50 % (0.50) (0.40)i

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method chat extrapolates the impact on define benefit obligation as a result
of reasonzble changes m key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

The following peyments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

1,, March 31,2018 Mareh 31, 2017
Pardeulars

l -

l\?{ﬂhliﬂ ths niext 12 morths (next annual tepoiting period) 0,62 3,50
['etween 2 and 5 vears 275 1.68
Beoween 5 and 10 years 608 500
'Eeyend 10 years -
Urasal sxpecred payments i 9.45 7.48
. .

The average duration of the definzd benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 8.22 vears (Masch 31, 20:7: 7.89 years:

29. Commitments
a. Leases

Cperating lease: Company as lessee

The Company has taken office premises on lease The leases have been entered into for period between five and nine vears with renewal
option after the initial shree years of the eac: lease The Comparty has the option, under some of its leases, tv renew the lease for an
addaional period or 3 years on a mutuai consent basis The Iease payments amounting to INR 13.34 million (March 31, 2017 Rs. 19.2¢
million) has bzer: charged to the scatement of profit and loss

furare minimum rentals payable under the operating lease is as foliows

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016 :

(Proforma)

Withir: one year
After une year but not more than five years

10.80
136

11.33
944

12.52
5.84

b. Capital commitments

As at March 31, 2018. the Company has commitments on capital account and not provided for (net of &
{March 31, 2017: Rs. 6.3 million, April 01, 2‘8‘}’(_3'115. 14.00 million)

253 Rs 6.63 million




Affle (India) Private Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

30. Related Party Disclosures

(i) Names of related parties and related party relationship

Relationship

Name of the related party

(i) Holding company

Affle Holdings Pte. Ltd Singapore

(ii) Fellow subsidiaries

Affle Limited, Umited Kingdom

Affle Global Pte. Limited (carlier known as Affie Appstudioz Pte. Ltd.,
Singapore)

S

(iii) Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key

manageinent personnel or their relatives

NewU Health and Fitness Platform Private Limited

(iv) Key management personnel

Anuj Kumar (Managing director)

Anuj Khanna Sohum (Director)

Kapil Mohan Bhutani (Director) [w e.f. September 30, 2017]
Khushboo Sachdeva (Company Secretary) [till September 18, 20171
Akanksha Gupta (Company Secretary) [w.e f. January 8, 2018]

{ii) The following table provides tie total value of transactions that have been entered into with retated parties for the relevant financial year:

Particuiars

Holding company

Enterprises owned or significantly

Fellow subsidiaries

.y
L1131

d by key t

personnel or their relatives

Rendering of service
Affle Global Pte. Ltd
NewU Health and Fitness Platform Pwvi Ltd

t of exp

to the

Company
Affle Holdings Pte. Ltd
Affle Global Pte. Ltd

Reimbursement of expenses by the
Company
Affle Global Pte. Ltd

For the year ended

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017 | March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017

March 3|.zms1

March 31. 2017

62.39 -

. 30.88

- 9.64

018

Transaction with Key Management Personnel

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

Compensation paid*:

Anuj Kumar
Short-term employee benefits

Kapil Mohan Bhutani (w.e.f. September 30, 2017)

Short-term employee benefits
Share based payments

10.50




Affle (India) Private Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

30. Related Party Disclosures

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended
Murch 31, 2007

Compensation paid*:

Khushbow Sachdeva (till September 14, 2017)
Short-term employee benefits

Akanksha Gupta (w.e.f. January 8, 2018)
Short-term employee benefits

0.18

* The remuneration to the key management personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are determined on an

actuarial basis for the Company as a whole

(iii) Balances as at the year end

Particulars

Holding company

Fellow

iva

—

Asat
March 31, 2018

Asat
March 31, 2017

Asat
April 1, 2016

Asat
Muarch 31, 2018

As at
March 31,2017

As at
April 1, 2016

Trade receivables
Affle Global Pte Ltd
Affle Holdings Pte Ltd

Other current assets
Affle Holdings Pte Ltd

Share application money pending allotment
Alffle Holdings Pte Lta
Affle Globas Pte Ltd

45.39

2248

Particulars

Key management personnel

Enterprises owned or significantly
management personnel or their relatives

influenced by key

As at
March 31, 2018

Asat
March 31, 2017

As at
April 1, 2016

Asat
March 31, 2018

Asat
March 31, 2017

Asat
April 1, 2016

Trade receivables
NewU Health and Fitess Platform Pvt Ltd

Payable to key management personnel
Amit Sharma

Anuj Kumar

Anurag Singh

Akanksha Gupta

0.00

2.84
0.04
0.01

0.35

082

(iv) No amount has been written off or written back in the year in respect of debts due from/to above related parties.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
The sale and purchase from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions Outstanding balances at the year end
are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. For the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company has not recorded any unpairment of receivabies
relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2017: Nil, April 01, 2016: Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year by examining the
financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates
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Affle (India) Private Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31,2018
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

31. Segment Information

Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way that companies report information about operating segments and related disclosures about products and services, geographic
areas, and major customers

The Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") being the Board of Directors ("Board") evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on analysis of
vartous performance indicators pertaining to advertisement and software development segment

The "Consumer platform" segment provides mobile advertisement services to its customers and is a reseller of advertisement space for online publishing companies

The "Enterprise platform" segment provides customized mobile app development services

Transfer prices between the operating segments are set at cost plus appropriate margins Segment revenue, segment expenses and segment result include transfers between
operating segments. Those transfers are eliminated in total revenue/expense/result

The accounting principles used in preparation of the financial statements are consistently applied to record revenue and expenditure in segment information, and are as set out
in the significant accounting policies

The summary of the segmental information for the year ended and as at March 31, 2018 is as follows:

Particulars Consumer platform | Enterprise platform Elimination Total
Income

Revenue from external customers 769.40 68 16 . 83756
Inter-segment revenue - - . -
Other income 762 - - 7.62
Total income (A) 777.02 68.16 - 845.18
Expenses

Inventory and data costs 42427 - - 42427
Employee benefits expenses 108,12 51.40 - 159 52
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 3213 - - 3213
Finance cost 10.78 - . 10.78
Other expenses 7515 10.97 - 86.12
Total expenses (B) 650.45 62.37 - 712.82
Segment profit (A-B) 132.36
Particulars Consumer platform | Enterprise platform Total

Segment assets 225.63 979 23542

Total assets 225.63 9.79 235.42

Segment liabilities 2198 15.40 3738

Total liabilities 21.98 15.40 37.38

Capital expenditure:

Property, plant and equipment 197 - 197

Intangible assets 3834 . 3834

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 3213 - 3213

Other non-cash expenses 452 021 473




Alfle (India) Private Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements (or the year ended March 31,2018

(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

31. Segment Information

The summary of the segmental information for the year ended and as at March 31, 2017 1s as follows

Particulars

Consumer platform | Enterprise platform Elimination Total
Income
Revenue from external customers 529.81 12648 - 65629
[nter segment revenue . 247 (247) -
Other income 5.66 - - 5.66
Total income (A) 535.47 128.95 2.47) 661.95
Expenses
Inventory and data costs 32378 - . 32378
Employee benefits expenses 98 24 79 42 (143) 176.23
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 2083 224 - 23.07
Finance cost 15.06 0.80 - 1586
Other expenses 8801 33 70 (0.65) 121 06
Total expenses (B) 545,92 116.16 (2.08) 660.00
Segment profit (A-B) 1.95
Particulars Consnmer platform | Enterprise platform Total
Segment assets 142 03 3211 17415
‘Total assets 142.03 32.11 174.15
Segment liabilities 8913 1472 103.85
Total liabilities 89.13 14,72 103.85
Capital expenditure:
Property, plant and equipment 177 0.10 187
Intangible assets 66 .65 - 66.65
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 2083 224 23.07
Other non-cash expenses 0.85 395 4,80
The summary of the segmental information for the year ended and as at April 01, 2016 is as follows
Particulars Consumer platform | Enterprise platform Total
Segment assets 187 45 373} 22476
Total assets 187.45 37.31 224.76
Segment liabilities 86.79 7 05 93 84
Total liabilities 86.79 7.05 93.84
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31. Segment Information

R iliation to refl

a. Reconciliation of profit

d in the financial statements

Particulars

March 31,2018

March 31,2017

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Segment profit 13236 195
Interest income on financial assets measured at
amorrised cost:

Bank deposits 192 184

Security deposits 018 095
Interest income on income-tax refunds . 11
Bad debts recovered 030 123
Liabilities no longer required written back 4.08
Gain on disposal of property, plants and equipment and
intangible assets (net) 005
Miscellaneous income |1 20 087
Profit before tax 135.96 12.08
b. Reconciliation of assets
As at As at As at

April 1,2016

Segment assets

23542 17415 22476
Property, plant and equipment 367 363 548
Goodwill 5924 5924 5924
Other mtangible assets 8818 80 14 33.06
Intangible assets under development - 306 3975
Loans 745 670 1162
Other assets 517 8.62 7.81
Cash and cash equivalents 136 71 5789 78.69
Other bank balances 820 2958 .
Interest accrued but not due on deposits 010 007 0.66
Advauces to related parties . - 671
Other financial assets - 001 -
Non-current mmvestrnents 026 020 -
Deferred tax assets 494 1896 2074
Tax assets 24135 28 48 28 69
Balance with statutory/government authorities 662 1616 2310
Total assets 580.31 486.89 540.31
¢. Reconciliation of liabilities
Particul As at As at As at
articuiars March 31,2018 | March 31,2017 April 1, 2016
Segment liabilities 3738 103 85 93 .84
Trade payables 220.24 160 08 229 84
Other current liabilities 204 12.65 1900
Total liabilities 278.66 276.58 342.68
Geographical information
Year ended and as at March 31, 2018
Particulars India Singapore Others Total
Revenue from operations
Sales to external customers 77022 3114 3620 837.56
Other segment information
Non-current assets (other than financial assets and 15115 151,15
deferred tax asset)
Capital expenditure:
Property, plant and equipment 197 1.97
Intangible assets 3834 38.34
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31. Segment Information

Year ended and as at March 31,2017

[Particulars | India Singapore Others Total 1

Revenue from operations

Sales to external customers 534.68 6239 5922 656.29

Otlier segment information

Mon-current assets (other than financial assets and
146.39 - 3!
deferred tax asset) Qa2

Capital expenditure:
Praperty, plant and equipment 1.87 - 1.87
Intangible assets 66.65 - . 66.65

Year ended and as at Aprii 1, 2016

Particulars India Singapore Others Total

Other segment information

Non-curent assets (other than financial assets and

i42 82 - 142,82
deferred tax asset) '

Information about major customers

The Company derives revenue in excess of 10% from one (March 31, 2017: one) major customer amounting to Rs. 503 10 million (March 33, 2017 Rs 203.68 milion)

(The space has been mtentionaily lefl blank;
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32. Statement of Fair Values

a) Fair Values

Set out beiow. s a comparison by class of the carrymg amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments:

Carrying value Fair value
Asat As at As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017 April 01, 2016 March 31,2018 March 31,2017 April 01,2016
Financial assets
A, FVTPL financial instruments;
Investments 026 0.20 026 0.20
8. Amortised Cost:
Security deposit paid 681 631 1136 681 631 1136
Loan to employees 0.64 0.39 026 064 039 026
Trade receivables 15823 13530 16299 15823 13530 162,99
Cash and cash equivalents 136.71 5789 78.69 136 71 5789 78 69
Other bark balances 820 29 58 820 2958 .
Other financial assets 7729 3893 6788 7729 3893 &7 88
Total 388,14 268.60 321.18 388.14 268.60 321.18
Financial liabilities
Amortised Cost:
Borrowings - 3360 40 40 - 3360 40 40
Trade payables 22024 160.08 229 84 22C 24 160.08 22984
Other financial liabilities 2489 59 66 3827 2489 59 66 38 27
Total 245.13 253.34 308.51 245,13 253.34 308.51

The management assessed that cash and cash equivolents, other bank balances, trade recetvables, capital creduors, trade payables and other financial liabilities approximate their
carrying emounts largely due to the short-term matunities of these instruments

The fair vaiue of the financial assets and liabilities 1s included at the amount at which the mstrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
in a forced or ‘iquidation sale Further. the subsequent measurements of all assets and liabilities (other fhen investments) is at amortised cost, using effective interest rate (EIR)

method

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Recevables are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, mdividual creditworthiness of the customer and the rish
characteristies of the financed project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected credit losses of these receivables

The fair value of ucquoted instruments and other financial assets and liabilities 1s estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently appheable for dehl on simila:

terms, credit risk and remaining maturities
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32. Statentent of Fair Values

b) I'air Value hierarchy

All finencial instuments for which %air value is recagtused or disciosed are categorised within the fair value luerarchy, described as follows, based on the [owes

tevel input thar « insignificant to the fair value measuremens as a whole.

Level 1. Quoded {onadjusied) prices in active markers for deniticai assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Vawation techmiques for which the lowest level mputs that bas a significant effect on the fair value measurement are observable, either directiy of

indrrectly, :

tevel 3:

The follov/ing table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2018:

L

Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input which has a signiticant effect on fair value measuremment is not based on observable market data

Faic value measurement using “
Quoted | Significan: | Significan |
Particulars Date 'of anua‘tion Tnputs used Total pric?s in ob'servable unul’ncn:l ir'.E
valuation technique active inputs e inputs |
markets }
(Level ) | (Leve!?) | (Level3) |
Assets measured at fair value: !I l
}

FVTPL financia! instruments: l
Invesimam March 31, 2018 |Discouned cash | Prevailing interes: rates in 028 020 ‘
Nuw the market, Future cash 1 !
Hows = :
0.26 0.26 -
Assets neasulsd at amortised cost: i i
|Secuty deposit paid March 31, 2018 {Discounted cash !Prevailing interest rates in 681 ! - 481 y
I ’ t flow tie market, Future cash i
flows ‘
Loan to emoloyees March 31, 2018 |Discounted cash  |Prevailing interest rates m 0.64 0.64 - '!
[ flow the market. Future cash | |
flows | |

Trade recervabies March 31, 2018 |Discounted cash | Prevailing interest rates in 15823 158.23 -
flow tive market, Future cash |
flows |
Cast and cash equivalents | March 31. 2018 |Discounted cash |Frevailing interest rates in 136 71 - 136.71 ;
flow the market, Future cash i
fows !
Othet bank belances | March 31, 2018 |Discounted cash  |Prevailing inverest rates in 8.20 8.20 ]
flow the market, Future cash ]
flows S
Other finenciai assets March 31, 2018 iDiscounted cash |Prevailing interest rates in 77.29 1729 -
flow the rarket, Future cash l
flows ]
387.88 - 387.88 -
Liabilities measared at amortised cost: l i
|
Trade payables March 31, 26.8 |Discounien cash | Prevailing interest rates in 220.24 - 22024 = 1
flow the market, Future cash '
flows |
Other financial liabilities March 31, 2018 |Discounted cash  |Prevailing interest rates in 2489 - 24 .89 - \
flow the market, Future cash i
flows S
| 245.13 - 245.13 |

There nave been no transfers between Level 1 and Lever 2 duning the year ended March 31, 2018
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32. Stacement of Fair Values

b) Fair Value hierarchy

Quantitative disclosures fair vaiue measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2017;

Fair value measurement using It

Quoted | Significant | Significant i

Particulars Date ot Valuation Inuts used Total prices in | observzble |anobservalli
valuation technique e active inputs e inputs b

markets “

(Level 1) | (Level 2) (Level 3: !

Assets messured at fair value: i
FVIPL financial instruments: :
Lavesimeant March 31, 2017 | Discounted cash Prevailing interest rates in 0.20 0.20 !
flow the market, Future cash J

flows : i

0.20 = 0.20 -

Assels measurad at amortised cost: |
Security deposit paid. March 31,2017 | Discounted cash |Prevailing interest rates in 6.31 § - 6.31 :
flow the market, Future cash 1 b

flows ! :

Loan to ernployees March 31,2017 | Discounted cash |Prevailing interest rates in .39 - .26 I
flow the market, Fuiure cash b

flows 1

Trade receivables March 31, 2017 | Discounted cash |Prevailing interest rates in 135.30 - 135.30 i
flow the market, Future cash \

fiows |

Cash and cash equivaients March 31, 2017 | Discounted cash |Prevailing intersst rates in 57.89 - 57.89
flow the market, Future cash | i

flows | 1

Otk2r vank balances March 31,2017 | Discoured cash |Prevailing interest rates in 29.58 - 20.58
flow the market, Future cash 1

flows I ;

her finarcial assets March 31,2617 | Discounted cash |Prevaiiing interest rates in 38.93 - 3893 |
flow the market, Future cash i

Mows i

268.40 - 268.40 .

Liabilities mezsured at amortised cost: '
| 1

| | !

Borrowings March 31, 2017 | Discounted cash |Prevaiiing mterest rates in 35.60 4 3360 :
flow the maiket, Future cash i

flows 1

Trade payables March 31, 2017 | Discounted cash |Prevailing iaterest rates in 160 08 - 160,08 ‘
flow the market, Future cash ;

flows :

Other financial labilities Maich 31,2017 | Discounted cash |Prevailing interest rates in 59.061 59.06 ‘
flow the marker, Future cash |

flows i

253.34 - 253.34 I[

There have been no transfers between Level LW 2 during the year ended March 31, 2017

v B
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32. Statement of Fair Values

b) Fair Value hierarchy

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at April 1, 2016:

|
I

Fair value measuremeny using

|
Quoted Significani | Signifi cam]
Particvlars Date of Valuatien Inputs used Total prices in | observable |unobservabi) !
valuati technig active inpats e inpats
markets _:
(Level 1) | (Levet2) | (lever®) |
Asscts measured at amortised cost: -I
*Security deposit paid April 01,2016 | Discounted cash !Prevailing interest rates in 11.36 - il.36 !
flow the market, Future cash |
flows !
Loan to eraployees April 01, 2016 | Discounted cash |Prevailing interest rates in 026 - G206 t
flow ihe market, Future cash ¢
flows ;
Trade receivables April 01,2016 | Discounted cash |Prevailing interest rates 162.99 - 162 99 i
flow the market, Future cash '
flows ]
Cash and cash equivalents April 01,2016 | Discounted cash |Prevailing interest rates n 78.69 783,69 -
flow the market, Future cash
flows
Other financiat assets April 01,2016 | Discounted cash |Prevailing interest rates in 67.88 6788
flow jihe market, Fuwire cash
flows
321.18 - 325.18 -
|Liakilities measured at amortised cost:
yBorrowings April 01, 2016 | Discounted cash |Prevailing interest rates in 40.40 40.49
| flow the market, Future cash
I flows
Trade payables Aopril 01,2016 | Discounted cash |Pravailing interest rates n 229 34 22984
flow the market, Future cash
flows |
Other financial labilities April 01, 2016 | Discounted cash |Prevailing mterest rates in 38.27 - 3827 -
flow the market, Future cash !
flows ],
308.51 - 308.51 1

There have been no transfers between Leve] ! md Level 2 during at April 1, 2016
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33, Fi inl Kisk, Manag t Objectives and Policies

The Compara s rincipal financias Habdities “onprise of tade payables, othes payables, capital eraditors and employee velated payubles. The main pupose of these fmercial
liabilt'es 1e w finance the Compaiy's operations and 10 provide punramiees to support its aperations. The Company's principsl financial assets include trade- and ylus
receivables and ash and cosh equivalent that derive directly from ity operations,

The Cerapany is exposed to marke. tisk, credil risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior 1y the 2 of diese nisks. The Company's sen -
management :s -esponsible for ensuzing that the Company s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and p I and that fi | nisks s vd

- measured and suinaged in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives, The Hoard of Directors reviews and agrees policies for mansging cach of th
which are sumnterised beiow.

a. Market risl
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a finarcial instrument will fluctuate because of change 1n market price

Foreign currency risk

Foreign cumency risk is the risk that the fair value or fature cash {lows of m exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign evehange raes The Compaay's 2xposuas 0
the risk of cianges in foreign exchange rates relares primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign curency).

the Campany does not use detvative financial nstraments such as forward 2xchange contrasts or options to hedge its risk associatsd with foreign currency flucmarons or fer
‘radmgfepeciiailon puroose,

The amount of fureigr: curency exposure nor heaged by denvative mstrumerits o1 othsrwise s as follows:

Particrtas As at 1 Agat As ar -
Maren 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 Aprii 01, 2016 ___I
Amount Fareign currency Amount Foreign currency Armount Foreign cucrenty

Financal liabikities

Trade payables |
us 36.75 6.57 £6.58 072} 5406 e ]
i i
Trade receivabtes i )
use 16.47 c.25 §7.55 | 085 i 5527 0.3: ¢
SGD .49 301§ . <
| | '

L

The tollowing table demonsirates the sensitivity 1o a reasonacle possivle chaage in USD exchange rates on profit before tax arising as 4 resali of the revaluation o Ve
Comoany’s fore:gr cuniency financiai assets and unhedged habilities

Eftect on profit before tax Effect on pre-vax equity ]
For the year ended| For the year ended| For the year ended| For the year ended|
Faticus March 31, 2018 March 31,2017 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2017 1

iEffect of 10% srrengthening of INR against USD

| |
198 110 1.10

(1.98)

Effect of 16?% weakening of INE. agamst USD
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33. Fi ial Risk, M

t Objectives and Policies

b. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions

A counterparty whose payment is due more than 90 days after the due date is considered as a defaulted party. This is based on considering the market and economic forces in
which the Company operates. The Company write-off the amount if the credit risk of counter-party increases significantly due to its poor financial position

All the financial assets carried at amortised cost were into Good category except some portion of trade receivables considered under doubtful category (Refer note 11).

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are typically unsecured. Credit risk is managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuousty monitoring the
creditworthiness of custorers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business

The Company is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-payment by customers. An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date. The Company uses a provision
matrix to measure the expected credit loss of trade receivables

The ageing analysis of trade receivables as of the reporting date is as follows:

ECL rate 4.82% 22.73% 33.89% 100.00%

. Particulars 0-90 days 90-180 days 180-360 days More than 360 Total
Trade receivables as at

days

March 31, 2018 Gross carrying amount 149,88 11.50 10.10 12,05 183.53
March 31, 2018 ECL - Simplified approach 7.22 2.61 3.42 12.05 25.30
March 31, 2018 Net carrying amount 142.67 8.89 6.68 - 158.23
March 31, 2017 Gross carrying amount 114.08 24.77 11.46 9.08 159.39
March 31, 2017 ECL - Simplified approach 5.50 5.63 3.88 9.08 24.09
March 31, 2017 Net carrying amount 108.58 19.14 7.58 - 135.30
April 01, 2016 Gross carrying amount 141.34 25.55 13.18 5.19 185.26
April |, 2016 ECL - Simplified approach 6.80 5.81 4.47 5.19 22.27
April 1, 2016 Net carrying amount 134.54 19.74 8.71 - 162.99
Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade receivables
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Opening impainnent allowance 24.09 2227 18.99
Add: Asset originated 11.22 11.21 23.27
Less: write-offs (net of recovery) (10.01) (9.39) (19.99)
Closing impairment allowance 25.30 24.09 22,27

None of those trade debtors past due or impaired have had their terms renegotiated. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reportity date is the fair value of each class of
debtors presented in the financial statement. The Company does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over balances with third parties nor does it have a lfegal

right of offset against any amounts owed by the Company to the counterparty. For receivables which are overdue, the Company has subsequently received payments and has
reduced its overdue exposure.

The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several Jurisdictions and operate in largely independent
markets

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only
with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty., Counterparty credit limits are reviewglb

basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Company’s finance committee. The limits ag
mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments

ytl gmpany’s Board of Directors on an annual
HM&;& ¢ concentration of risks and therefore
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33. Fi cial Risk, Manag, t Objectives and Policies

. Liquidity risk

Liquidity dsk iz the risk that the Company will hot e ablz to meet its financial ot ligations as they | due. The Company monitors their risk of shortage of funds using,
cash flow forecasting models. These models cansider the maturity of their finnncial in C itted funding and projected cash flows from operations The Company’a
objecrive is to provide financial resources to meet its business abjectives in n timely. cost efféctive and reliable manner.

A balance betwsen continuity of fimding and flexibility is mamtained through

the use of boirowings. The Cotnpany also monitors compliance with ifs debt covenants. ‘The
majurity proiile of the

Company s financial liabilities based on contraciual undiscounted piyiments is given in the table below:

Particulars Contractu:;;:l;dlscounted 0-1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 years

As at March 31, 2018

Trade payables 220,24 220.24 - - -

Other financial liabilities 24.89 24.89 . - -
245.13 245.13 - -

As at Marck 31, 2017

Borrowings 75.04 68.84 6.20 -

Trade payabies 160.08 160.08 - -

Other finarcial liabilities 22.30 22.30 - . -
257.42 251.22 6.20 - -

As at April 01, 2016

Borrowings 93 14 46.44 40,50 6.20

Trade payables 229.84 229,84 -

Other £narcial liavilities 0.47 047 - - :
323.45 276,75 40.50 4.20 -
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34. Capital Management

The Board's pokcy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain 1nvestor, creditor and market confidence and te sustain future deveiopment of
the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital employed as well as the level of dividend to shareholders

For the purposs of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, retained earings and all other equity 1eserves attribatable
to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes m economic conditions and the requirements of the financial

covenants, To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
1551¢ new shares.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt,

interest beanag loars ana borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and casn equivalents, The Company's policy is to keep the gearing ratio
between (% and 60%.

Farticulars | As at i As at As at
Iviarch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016
Borrowings (Note 14) - 33.60 40.4G
Trade payables (Note +6) 220 24 160.08 220.84
Other financial liabilites (Note 17) 24.8% 59.66 2827
Less: Cash.arnd cash equivalents (Note 12) 136 71) (57.89) {78 69)
Net debts _ 108.42 161.85 189.42
Total capital 301.05 21031 197 63
Capital and net debt 410,07 372.16 387,03
H
Gearing ratio ¢ %} 26% 43% 49%,

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financia! covenants
attached to the interest-oearing borcowings toat define capnal suucture requirements. There have beer no breaches i the financial covenants of any
interest-bearbig borrowings in the current period

No changes were made 1n the obiectives. policies o1 processes for managing capital during the last financial years

35, Shzre-Based Payments

Aftie Holdings Pte 1.:d., Singapore { AHPL), the holding vompany, has certain stock options plans which entitle the employees of the group, including
certain employees ot the Company. the option o pucchase shares of AHPL at the exercise date

Description of vhe plan

Share cptions were granted to key management at the absolute discretion of the Compensation Comumittee of the Board of Ditestors under the Affle
Fmleyee Stare Option Scheine ana Affle Rest:cted Share Pian, which became operative on June 18, 2009,

The option shiall vest at the rate o2’ one quarter (1/4) per year starting on every one-year anniversary from the grant date Vesting of the options granted
under the Scireme is conditional onty on the key management or employee remaining in the Company at the grant date. Once the options are vested, they
are exercisable for a period of ten years, The options may be exercised in full or in part, to purchase a whole number or vested shares not less than 100
shares. anless the number of shares subscribed is the total number available for subscription under the option.

Options are forteited when the employee leaves the Company before the optioas vest.

The details of the pian 1s as follows:

Date of grant January 15, 2010 May 31,2011 | April i, 2013 | April1,2014 | April 1, 2015 | April 1, 2016
Exercise prce 41.09 62.35 105 40 137.55 132 09 154 96
Options granted 1,042,500 236,250 203,250 30,000 57,000 57,000
Method of settlement Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity
Validity 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 vears 10 vears
Vesting schedule 25% of the options vest every year from the respective grant dates up to the 4th year

The expenses arising from equity settled share based payment transactions in the year ended March 31, 2018 was Rs 0 i March 31, 2017: Rs

1.52 million)
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35. Shaxe-Based Payments {" Contd")

Movemer:is during the year

The foliuwing table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) ¢f. and movements in, share options during the year:

Partionlar March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Number WAEF Number WAEP
|Outstanding at April 1 1,276,250 55.71 1,276,500 49,10
|l':r:mtu(l during the year . 57,000 154.96
Forfeited during the year - (57,250)
|Exercised during the year - | - - -
EExerc!sxble at March 3i 1,276,250 55.71 1,276,250 55.71
| 1

The weghted average remaining comractuat life for the share options outstanding as at March 31, 2013 was 6.60 years (March 31, 2017: 7.60 years;.

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the vear was Rs. Nil (March 31, 2017: Rs 154 96)

The range of exercise prices for options outstandiag at the end of the year was Rs. 41.09 t¢ Rs. 154,96 (March 31,2017, Rs 41 09 to Rs

The tollowing table lists the mputs to the models used for the plan:

154.96)

Particulars April 1,2016 April 1,2015 April1,2014 | April1,2013 | May 31,2011 jJanuary 15, ZGZI_(IJ
Divicend sield (%) | . X . : ’
Expecied volatility (%) 66.1 - 68 ‘)| 75.1-793 751-79.3 78.4-84.2 30 850- 86.8'
Kisk Iiee inerest vate (%) 1.8-2.0 1.8-20 1.8-2.0 0¢-12 2,723 2.6 - 3.2
Exsected life of share opticns (years) 55-7.10 55-7.10 55-710 55-710 55-7.10 5.5 -7 10|
Weighted average share prise (Rs.) §2.13 4237 16.78 47.29 2840 35.09
Mode: used Black Scholes Black Scholes| Black Scholes| Black Scholes|  Black Scholes! Black Schales
\ i |

Tre expecied life of the share options 1s based on historical data and current expectations and is not recessarily indicative of exercise patterns that may
cewur. The expected vouaility reflects the assumption that the historical volatilitv reflects rhe assumption that the historical volatility over a period similas to
the life of the options 1s indicative of future trends, which may not necessarily be the actual outcome

Restricted Share Plan

Under Affle Restricted Share Plan, the employee is not required to pay for the grant of the awards. Awards are forteited when the employee ieaves the

Cornpany before the awards vest

The details of the plan are as follows:

Date of grant April 1, 2015 April 1, 2016
Cptions granted 166,428 260,000
Vesting period 10 years 10 years
Method of settlement Equity Equity
Share price (Rs.) 42,96 82.35 |
Movements during the year
Particul March 31,2018 | March 31, 2017
WiliARaEs Number Number
Outstanding at April 1 316,055 316,055
Granted during the year - -
Forfeited during the year -
Exercised during the year - -
316,055 316,055
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35. Share-Bascd Payments ("'Contd™)

The expenses avisiag from equity se‘tled share b

ased payraent transactions in the year ended March 31,2018 was Rs. 2. 19 millior, (March 31,2007 Rs. 191
million)

il

The weighted average remaining contractusl life for the share cptions outsianding as at March 31, 2018 was 7.83 years (March 31, 2017: 8.83 years)

36, Dues to Micro and Smali Enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

I term of the requirement of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006, the Company has continuously sought confirmations 2

asec
on the information available with the Company, there is no principal/interest amount due to micro and small enterprises.

Particulars As at As at As at
Mavrek 31. 2018 | March 31,2017 | Aprit 61, 2016

The principal amount and the wnterest due vhereon (o be
shown separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the Nil

Wil Nl
end of each accounting year

The amount of inderest paid by the buyer 1. terms of Section
16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the zmours of the . . )
paymeit made 10 the supplier beyond the appointed day Nt Nil Nil
during eack accounting year |

The amount of interest due and payable for the verisd of delay
in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the .
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest Nil Ni Nil
specified under the MSMED Act 2006

The amacunt of interest accrued ana lemaining unpaid at the _ . .
i Nil Nil Nil
end of each accounting year

The amoon: of further interest remaining due and payable
sevan m the succeeding years, until sucr date when the interest
[dues as above are actually vaid to the smatl enterprise for the Nil
purpose of disallowance as a czductible expenditure under|
Secrion 23 of the MSMED Act 2000

Nil Nil

~ <
v )_1 oy
x ~ u'—":;’\,\
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Notes forming part of financiai statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
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37. Business Combination

The scheme of amalgamation (the Scheme) is for the amalgamation of the AD2C
Private Limited (Transferor Company No. 2) and Appstudgioz Technologies Private
(Transferee Company or the Company),

Holdings Private Limited (Transferor Company No. 1), AD2C [ndia
Limited (Transferor Company No.3) with Affle (India) Private Limited

All the four companies, i.e. AD2C Holdings, AD2C India, Appstudioz Technologies and Affle India were subsidiaries of the same parent company based
ont of Singapore. Therefore, the parent company decided to merge its Indian operations to create a single robust entity which would carry on businesses

that are integrated and complimentary in nature, Accordingly, their businesses are combined conveniently/ advantageously which is expected to ensure the
benefit of the shareholders, the employees and all the stakeholders of the four companics.

The Scheme has been approved by the board of the directors of the Company in their meeting held on May 13, 2015.

Salient features of the Scheme are:

()  The names of the Transferor Compantes stand changed to Affie (India) Private Limited.

(1) The Scheme is operative from the appointed date, i.e. April 1, 2015 and is effective from the date on which copies of the orders of Hon'ble High
Courts of Bombay, Delhi and Punjab & Haryana sanctioning the Scheme have been filed with the Registrar of Companies, respectively

(il}) Authorised share capital of the Transferee Company is the sum total of the authorised share capital of all the four companies

(iv) based on the business valuation of all four companies, equity shareholders of AD2C Holdings are entitled to get 74 equity shares for every 21 equity
shares held in AD2C Hoidings, equity shareholders of AD2C India are entitled to get 48 equity shares for every 17 equity shares held in AD2C India

and equity shareholders of Appstudioz Technologies are entitled to ger 586 equity shares for every 5 equity shares held in Appstudioz Technologies
of the Transferee Company

Based on above, the Scheme provides for the mcrease in the issued and paid up equity share capital of the Transferee Company by allotment of
8,464,330 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each amounting to Rs. 84.64 million,

Accordingly, the paid-up equity share capital of the Transferee Company has become Rs. 242.88 million comprising 24.29 million equity shares as
at April 1, 2015

(v) Al assets, Liabilities, nghts and obligations of the Transferor Comparies shall vest with the Transferee Company at fair value as on the appointed
date, i.e. April 1, 2015,

‘The Scheme has been sanctioned by the Hon'ble High Courts of Bombay, Delht and Punjab & Haryana vide their orders dated August 5, 2016, January 16,
2017 and December 9, 2016 respectively, the copies of which have been filed with the Registrar of Companies on February 7, 2017, February 7. 2017 and
January 9, 2017 respectively. Accordingly, the effective date of the Scheme is February 7, 2017 though the appointea date 1s April 1, 2015

Based on above. the Scheme has been given effect to in these financial statements with retrospective effect from April 1, 2015

The Scheme has been accounted for using purchase method in accordance with previous GAAP, Accordingly, all the assets and fiabilities of the Transfernr
Compames have been mcorporated at fair values as at April 1, 2015, details of which are given below:

Particulars Appstudioz AD2C India AD2C Holdings Total
T'echnologies
ASSETS
Mon-current assets )
Property, plant and equipment 463 1.14 - 5a17
Imtangible assets 0.66 19 66 - 2(3.32
Intangible assets under development - 798 . 7.98
Financial assets
(i} Loans 6.31 1M - 8.02
Deferred tax assets (net) 2.22 351 . 573
Non-current tax assets (net) 0.05 - - 0.05 |
13.87 34.00 - 47.87
Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 8.74 113.82 - 122.56
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 39 13.24 087 18.02
- 498 - 498
(iii) Bank balances other than (iii) above
(iv) Loans - 0.86 5.12 598
(v) Other financial assets 070 1.96 - 2.66
Other current assets 0.65 1.97 . 2.62
Current tax asset {net) - 13.61 1.22 14.83
14.00 150.44 7.21 171.65
Total assets 27.87 184.44
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Notes forming part of financiai statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
{Amaunt in (NR million, unless otherwise stated)

37. Business Combination

. Appstudioz
Particulars i & i Totai
Technologies AD2C India AD2C Holdings Totai
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities t
Long-tem provisions 370 0.96 - 4 68
' 3.70 0.96 . 4,65
Current liabilities |
Financial liabilties i
(i) Borrowings 512 - 512 {
(ii) Trade Payables dues to others 2309 142.05 197 w61
(i) Trade Payables dues of micro small i
and small enterprises E . i -
(iv) Cther financial liabilities [.31 - 0.08 129
Other carrent liabilities 067 14.62 - 15.29
Short term nrovisions 0.54 I - - 0 54
25.61 | 161.79 2.05 189.45
Toial liabilities 29.31 162.75 2.95 194.11
.|Net assets/ (liabilities) acquired (1 44)| 21.69 5.16 254}

In view of abave, goodwill amounting to Rs. 59.24 nuilion has been recorded in the books as at April 1, 2015 on the basis of purchase consideration
amounting to Rs. 84,64 million:

Impairment testing of Goodwill

Goodwill acquired turough business combinatious havs indetinste life. The Zompany performed its annual impairmen: test for years ended March > 1, 2018
and March 31, 2007. The Comparv considers the relavonship between its value in use and its carrying value. among other factors, when reviewing for
indicators of impairment

The recoverable amount of the gooawill s determined based on value in use ('VIU") calculated using cash flow projections from financial buagets
approved by management covenng a period of five year period and the terminal value (after considering the reievant long-term: growth rate) at the end o
the sard forecast penods. The Company has extrapolated cashflows beyond 5 years using a growth rate of 4 5% (March 31, 2017; 4 5%)

The said cash flow projections are based on the senior management past experience as wsll as expected met trends for the future periods. The projecied
cash flows have been updated to reflect the decreased demand for seivices. The caleulation of weighted average cost of capital (WACC) is based on the
Company's estimated capital structure as relevant and attributable to the Company. The WACC is also adjusted for specific risks, market risks and
pretnium, and other inherent risks associated with similar type of investments to arrive at an approximation of the WACC of a comparable market
aarvipant The said WACC being pre-i=x discount rates refiecting specific nsks, are then applied to the above mentioned prejections of the estimated
future: cash fiows to arrive at the discounted cash flows

The key assumptions used in the determinavion of VIU are the revenue annual growth rates and the EBITDA growth rate

Based on the above assumptions and analysts, no impairment was identified as at March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 Further, on the anaiysis of the said
calculation's sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in any of the above mentioned key assumptions / parameters on which the Management has based
determination of the recoverable amount, there are no scenartos identified by the Management wherein the carrying vaiue could exceed its recoverable

t
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Notes Yormeirg parc of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in INR raillion, urless otherwise stated)

38. First-Time Adoption of Ind AS

T_he:;o financial statements. for the year ended 21 31, 2618 are the first ume that the Company has prepared in accordance with tnd 48, g
peaiods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordan

o2 with accounting standacas
notifiest under section 133 of the Companies Act 20153,

read togsther with puregraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian CAAPR).

Accordirgly, tne Compuny has prepared financial statements wiich compiy with Ind AS applicable for periods ending on March 31, 2018, togethis
with thz comparative period data as at and for the year ended March 31, 2017, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. i

preparing these financial statements, the Company's opening balance sheet was prepared as at Aprii 1, 2016, the Company’s date of transition o Ind
A3

Thus note explains the principal adjustments made by the Comparny in restating its Indian GAAP finarcial statements, i nciuding the balance sheet as at
April 1, 2016 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2017

Exemgtions applied:

Ind AS 101. First-time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards aliows first time adopters of Ind AS certaw: optional exemntions and mardatory
cxeeptiens ftom the retrospectve application of certain (nd AS. The Company has applie
rativn v adian GAAP to Ind AS,

d tne following exempuions and mendatory exceprious in the

(1) Mandatery exceptions:

#) Istithates
The esviraates as au April 01, 2016, March 31, 2017 are consistent with those made for the same dates in accordance with Indian GAAP (afics

adjustiients to reflect any differences in uccounting policies) apart from e following items where application of indiar. GAAP did not reg e
sstimation;

* Impairment of finarcial assets based on expected credit Icss model

The z3tiates used by the Company tc piesent these amounts in ascordance with Ind AS reflect conditions as ac April 1. 2016 and March 31, 2017

bj De-recognition of financial assets:

The Company nas applied the de-recognition requnements n Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of transition tu
ind AS

(ii) Optionzl exemptions:

{nd AS 107 allows first time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS The Compary has
applied the following exemptions:

4} Deeiiced cost - Indian GAAP carrying amouny: {Property, plant and equipment and Capital-work-in-progress)
tua A5 101 permfs a first-time adopter to etect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the
fnancisl statements as at te date of fransition to fad AS, measured as per the Indian GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as a. the dawe of transition

after making necessary ediustments for de-commussioning liabilities. This exemption can also be used for capital-work-1n-progress as weil

Accerdingly, the Cempany has elected to measure aii of its property, piart and equipment and capital-work-in-progtess at their [rdian GAAP carryiag
velue

b) Share based payment ‘ ) ‘
ind AS 102 deals with the accounting and disclosure requirements related to share-based payment transactions Ina AS 102 Share-based Payment has,
not been applied to equity instruments of share-based payment transactions that vested before April 1, 2016
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33. First-Time Adoption of Ind AS ("Contd'")

Reconciliatior: of equity as at April 01, 2016

Amount as per Ind AS Amount as pev
Particulars Footmotes 1450 GA.\IIJ‘# adjustments Ind AS &
(1} Non-current assets
(a) Property, Flart ard Equipment 348 3.48
(L) Capita) werk-m-progress 1.26 - 1.26
fcy Goodwill E 44.44 14.80 59.24
(d) Other intangible assets 33.06 . 3305
(e} Intangible assets under development 39.75 - 3975
f) Financiai Assets
(i) Loans A 7.76 (1.28) 6.28
&) Deferred tax asset (net) B 16.06 4,68 20.74
(k) Non current tax asset (net) 316 - 316
(i) Other poan-cuiTent assets A - 0.86 0.86
i 150.97 18.86 169.83 |
(2) Current assets
(2) Financial Assers
(1) Trade Receivables C 174.31 (11.32) 162,99
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 78.69 . 78.59
(1ii) Bank balances other than (iii) above - . -
(iv) Loans A 5.67 (0.33) 5.34
(v) Other financial assets D 70.95 {3.07) 67.88
(b) Other current assets A 29.17 0,88 30.05
{c) Curren: 1ax asset {net) 25,53 - 25.53
384,32 (13.84) 370.43
Total Assets 535.29 5.02 540.31
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
sa) Eauity Share capital 242 88 - 24288
(b) Other wquity (52.70) 745 (45.25)
190.18 7.45 197.63
LIABILITIES
| (1Y Nom-current lishbilines
| (a) Financial Liabiiities
(i) Borowings B 42.83 (243) 4046 !
(b) Long term provisions 998 : S92
52.81 (2.43) 50.38
(2} Current labilities
fa) Financial Liabilities
(i) Trade Fayables dues to others 229.34 22934
(ii) Trade Payables dues of micro small and small enterpnises = . v
(iii) Other financial liabilities 38.27 38.27
(b) Other current liabilities 19.00 - 19.00
(c) Short term provisions 5.9 . 5.19
292,30 - 292.30
| Total Equity and Liabilities 535.29 5.02 540.31

# Indian GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note. J\

 Tioad
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation of equity as at Marca 31,2017

Amount as pir ind AS Amount as per |
i Footnotes  yugjan GAAP#  adjustments Ind A% k
(1) Nor-current assets _i
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3.03 - 3.63
(b) Goodwill E 29.64 29.60 59.24
{¢) Other intangible assets 80.14 = 80.i4 f
(d) Intangible assets under development 306 - 31.06
(&) Financial Assets |
(i) [nvestments 0.20 . 026G
(ii) Loans. * A 717 (0.36) 631!
() Dieferred tax ssset (net) B 1988 .92 1896 ;
(g) Other norn-current assets A - 0.32 132
143.72 28.14 171.66
{2} Current assets
{a) Financial Assefs
(1) Trade Receivables C 14729 (11.99) 135.30
(i) Cash and cush equivalents 3739 . 57.89
(iit) Bank balences orher than (i1i) above 29.58 2058
(*v) Loans 039 . 034
(v) Other financial assets D 46,90 (197 3892
1b) Other current assets A 23.95 035, 2445
(¢) Carrent tax asset (net) 25.48 - _ 2548 |
32848 (13.45) 3505
Totai Assets 472.20 14.€9 456.59 |
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES i
(1) Equity |
| () Equity Share zapital 242,88 = 247 88 |
( (b) Gther Equity (47.97) 540 (32,573
h 194,91 15.40 210,31 |
i LIABILITIES |
! (1} Non-current liabilities :
| \a) Finarwial LiahiHaes
! (i) Borrowings F 6.00 0.74, 5.26
| (H) Loag term p1Gvisivns 912 . 9.12
' 15.12 (0.74) 14.38
E (2% Current liabilities
(a) Financial ( iapilitics
| (i) Borrowings 28.34 - 28.34
(i1) Trade Payables dues 1o cther 160.08 16093
(iii) Trade Payabies dues of micro small and small enterprises - .
(iv) Other fibancial liabilities 59.66 . 55.66 |
(b) Other curvent liabitities 12.62 9,03 12,65
i {c) Skort term provisions 147 . . A'. A7
262.17 093 262.20
Total Equity and Liabilities 472.20 14,69 486,39
e |
# Indian CAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presenzation requirements for the purpose of this note Q
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(Amount in INR million, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation of profit or loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

Particulars . Amount as per Ind AS Amount as per
Footnotes 1 ian GAAP adjustments Ind AS
I Revenue From Qperations 656.29 - 656.29
II Other Income A 14.82 0.97 1579
III Total Income (I+IT) 671.11 0.97 672.08
IV EXPENSES
Inventory and data costs 32378 - 323.78
Employee benefits expense Gand H 168.28 7.95 176.23
Finance costs F 14.17 1.69 15.86
Depreciation and amortization expense E 37.87 (14.80; 2307
Other expenses ACandD 120,54 0.52 121.06
Total expenses (V) 664.64 (4.64) 660.00
V  Profit before tax (IV-V) 6.47 5.61 12.08
VI Tax expense: B
(1) Current tax 1.82 - 1.82
(2) Deferred tax (credit)/ charge 0.30 3.84 414
VII Profit for the period (V+ VI) 4.35 1.77 6,12
VI Other Comprehensive Income 3.13 3.13
1tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement (losses) on defined benefit plans I - 4.53 453
Income tax effect B - (1.40) (LAY
' IX Total Comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII) 4.35 4,90 9.25
L
Total equity reconciliation as at March 31, 2017 and April 1, 2016
As per Indian As per Indian
Particulars Footnotes  GAAP asat GAAP asat
March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Total equity under Previous GAAP 194.91 190.18
Security deposit - rental expense A (1.97) (1.03)
Security deposit - unwinding of discount A 191 0.96
Allowance for impairment of trade receivables and unbilled revenue Cand D (13.96) (14.39)
Reversal of amortisation of goodwill E 29.60 14.80
Impact of effective interest rate adjustment on borrowings F 0.74 243
Deferred tax impact B (0.92) 4.68
‘Totnl equity under Ind AS 210.31 197.63
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Notes forming part of financial statements for the year ended March 31,2018
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Footnotes fo the reconciliation of equity as at April 01, 2016 and March 31, 2017 and profit or loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

A,

=

Loans (Security deposits)

Under Indian GAAP ('Indian GAAP"), the security deposits paid for lease rent are shown at the transaction value whereas under Ind AS, the same are
initially discounted and subsequently recorded a amortised cost at the end of every financial reporting period. Accordingly, the difference between the
transaction and discourmed value of the security deposits paid towards lease rent is recognized as deferred lease expense and is amortised over the

period of the lease term (along with current and non- current classification). Further, interest is accreted on the present value of the secunty deposits
paid for lease rent

. Deferred tax

indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the mncome statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and
accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the Balance Sheet approach, which focuses on
temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the Balance Sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12
approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences relating to various trausition adjustrments which are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in retained eamings or as a separate component in equity.

. Trade receivables

Under Indian GAAP. the Company has created provision for impairment of receivables consists only n respect of specific amount for incurred losses.
Urder Ind AS, impanrment ailowance haz been determined based on Expected Loss model (ECL).

. Other financial assets (Unbilled revenue)

Under Indian GAAP, the Company had created provision for impairment of unbilled revenue only in respect of specific amount for incurred losses
Under Ind AS, impairment allowance has beer: determined based on Exvected Loss model (ECL),

. Business Combirations

Under Indian GAAP, the goodwill on business combination was amortised to the statement of profit and loss over a period of 4 years. Under Ind AS,

the goodwill is tested for impairment at the end of each reporting period and amortisation of goodwill is not allowed, Accordingly, the amortisation of
goodwill recognised under Indiarn GAAP has been reversed

Borrowings

Under [ndiau GAAP, the Company has charged transaction costs incurred 1n connection with borrowings upfront 1o the statemen: of proiit and iose

Under Ind AS, transaction costs are included in the initial recognition amount of financial liability and charged to arcfit or loss using ihe effective
nterest rate method.

Share based payments

As per Ind AS 102 relating to share-based payment, the Company has recorded fair value of options provided 1o its employees by its ultimate holding
company using an appropriate pricing model recognised over the vesting period. Under Indian GAAP. as per the Guidance Note issued by The
Institate of Chartered Accountants of India on Accounting for Employee Share-Based Payments, the management was of the opiniun that the stock
options scheme were managed and administered by the ultimate holding company for its own benefit and do not have any settiement obligations on
the Cempany. Further, the scheme pertain to shares of the ultimate holding company and the impact of compensation benefits in respect of such
schenes is assessed and accounted for 1n the books of the ultimate parent compary. Accordingly, the Company was not required to accoant for such
expenses as per the said Guidance Note under Indian GAAP.

. Employee benefit expense

Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recogmsed costs related to its post-employment defined benefit plen on an actuarial basis. Under
Indian GAAP, the entire cost. including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to the statement of profit and loss Under Ind AS remeasutemer.ts
compnsing of actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credi ro 1efained earimgs
through other comprehensive income (OCI).

Other comprehensive income )
Under Indian GAAP, the Company has not presented other comprehensive incoime (OCY) separately Hence, it hag reconciled Indian GAAP prefir or
loss tc profit or profit or loss as per Ind AS. Further. Indian GAAP profit or loss is reconciled to total comprehensive income as per Ind AS

Statement of cash flows
The transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS has nor had a material irapact on the s:atement of cash flows,
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39. The Company has filed a complaint with fhe police department for embezzlement of the Company's car
recover fuil cost of the Company's car amounting to Rs. 0.61 million (March 31, 2017: Rs. 0.61
Saurabh Singh, ex- director of the Company, by transterring the
Company. Therefore, the Company
2017: Rs. 0.22 million) in the books

axd filed he starement of claims to
million). This embezzlement was done by Mir,
Company's ear to the name of his father without any form: of cansent from the
has written down the entire net book value of the Company's car amounting to Rs, C.15 mliion (March 3%,

40. Czpitalisation of Intangible Assets

The Company has capitalized the following expenses of revenue nature vo the intemally developed so:tware. Consequa

‘ | ntiy, the expenses disclosed
unger the respective heads are net of amounts capiialized by the Company

. For the year ended For the year ended
EGOENIES March 31, 2018 Marck 31,2017
Salaries, allowances and bonus 24.53 24.07
Rent 174 1.50
Power and tuel 0.08 0.05
Printing and swavionery 6.05 0.08
Tvavelling ana conveyance - 116
Rzpairs anc mamtenatice - others 0.6% 0.78
Cumnisaicatior 0.13 0.30
O 7.64 1.70
Total . 34.86 29.64

1

41. The share application :noney pending allotment appearing in the books of the Company amounting to Rs, 0 00 pertains to two sibcribers on
account of the exchange ditferences.

42. The Company 1s in contaventior of certan provisions under Foreign Exchange Management Act {FEMA) due 1o certain administative and
regulatory non-filings by authorized dealer with Reserve Bank of India iRBI) related to non-allotment of equity shares within stipulared ¢ime and is
in the process of applying for relevant approvals with the regulatory authorities The Company, basis legal opinion obtaned in earlier year, was
reasonably confident of receving approval/ condonztion from the reguiatory authorities with respect to the above non-compliarce after incurring
vertzin penalties. The Jolding Company has guaranteed to rermburse any hability arising on the Company on account of such non-compliance and
acvordingly, the Company has recorded provision and corresponding indemnification assets of amounting Rs 7 50 million as at March 31, 2014,
The Company has revised its estimate of provision due to regulanzation of the non-compliance and accordingly. has reduced the provisioa and
mdementication asses at Rs, 2,20 rllion and Rs 0.5 million as at Marca 31, 2015 and March 31, 2016 respectively

During the vear ended March 31, 2018, RBI has compounded the contravention on payment of Rs. 0.5 willion by order dated August (2, 2017,

4% The Corwvany nas appomied independent consultants for conduiting a wansfer pricing study to determine whether the transacrions wica
associatzd 2ateronse were yndertaken at "amas length price". The management confirms thar all domestic and inte.navional traycasticas with
associavec erderprises are undertaken af negotiated contracted price on usual comnereiai terms and is confident of there being no adjustment o
cempletton of the swity, Adwstmen, if any, ansmg from the transfer pricing study shall be accounted for as and when the study is coimmleied

Ags per our report of even date

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICAI Firm's Registration Ne : (01049W/E300004 Affle (India) Private Limited
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